3X Arion Bank

Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year 2013

Arion Bank
Borgartun 19
105 Reykjavik

Iceland

Reg. no. 581008 - 0150



CONTENTS

page
Endorsement and Statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO .........ccecierieiiiiieesee e estee st e saesteeteeseeesaeseeeseeesseessseesseenneas 3
[[aTe < o=T o o I=T oY YU T [ e 2T o e o USROSt 6
Consolidated Statement of COMPIrENENSIVE INCOME .....cccuiiiiieiiiciecieesee ettt este e te e teesseesteesteesseesseesseeenseenseesseesasessseenseesseenns 7
Consolidated Statement of FINANCIAl POSILION .......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiic et st 8
Consolidated Statement of ChangeSs IN EQUILY ...ccvieciiiiiiiieiiieieesee sttt ste et e e teesteesta e st e esteeseessaessseenseenseesseessseesseesseessseenseensenne 9
Consolidated Statement 0f Cash FIOWS ........coiviiiiiiiiiiiciece et 10
Notes to the Consolidated Financial STAtEMENTS ........cceciiiiiiiiiiic e e 12

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2013 2




ENDORSEMENT AND STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND THE CEO

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the year ended 31 December 2013 include the Consolidated Financial Statements
of Arion Bank ("the Bank") and its subsidiaries, together referred to as "the Group".

Operations during the year

Net earnings amounted to ISK 12,657 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Group’s equity amounted to ISK 144,947 million at
year end. The capital adequacy ratio of the Group, calculated according to the Financial Undertakings Act, was 23.6% and comfortably meets
the requirements set by law and the Financial Supervisory Authority ("FME"). The liquidity position was strong at year end and well above
the regulatory minimum. The Board of Directors proposes that 60% of Net earnings will be paid out as a dividend in 2014 for the financial
year 2013.

The Group performed well during the year and operations were characterized by greater stability. The appreciation of the Icelandic kréna
had the effect of reducing interest income and the value of the loan portfolio. Another item which changed significantly from 2012 is that
impairment on loans decreased, reflecting the success which has been achieved in restructuring the loan portfolio in recent years. However,
there was a threefold increase in the bank levy compared with the previous year and the increase was ninefold when compared with the
levy as it was initially presented for the year.

At the end of 2013 an agreement was reached between Arion Bank and ESi ehf., a subsidiary of the Central Bank of Iceland, on the
settlement of the Dromi bond from 2009. The bond was paid with assets including three loan portfolios originating from two small failed
banks, SPRON savings bank and Frjalsi Investment Bank. The transfer of these loan portfolios enables thousands of former customers of
these banks to combine their business at Arion Bank as the deposits of those same customers had previously been transferred to the Bank.
The effect of the agreement on the balance sheet and income statement can be seen in the transfer of assets from securities holdings over
to loans to customers. The loans received by the Bank are only to individuals which increases the ratio of loans to individuals in the Bank’s
loan portfolio to 48.8% at the end of the year. This fits in well with the Bank's strategy of increasing the proportion of loans to individuals. At
the same time it raises slightly the ratio of problem loans, as the quality of these loan portfolios is slightly less than that of similar loans
already owned by the Bank. The agreement and its effects are discussed in more detail in Note 21.

The Bank has made concerted efforts to diversify its funding base in the short term and long term. To this end the Bank has issued bond
series which have been sold and listed in Iceland and abroad. The Bank has also increased the term of its deposits. An important milestone
in the Bank’s funding was reached in January 2014 when Standard & Poor’s assigned Arion Bank a credit rating of BB+ with a stable outlook
which is just one notch below the rating of the Republic of Iceland.

Very good progress has been made in recent years in selling the companies that the Bank had to take over in debt restructuring, and during
the year the sale of assets linked to the Fram Foods group was completed. However, the Bank acquired a 38% share in the
telecommunications company Skipti hf. in the process of financially restructuring the company which increased the Group's assets in
associate companies.

The Bank has strived to promote its intrinsic values called the Bank's cornerstones. The cornerstones are "We make a difference", "We say
what we mean" and "We get things done". A great deal of effort has gone into the introduction of a lean management called A plus which is
designed to ensure efficiency and strengthen customer relationships throughout the Bank with the ultimate goal of improving the level of
service to customers.

In November the Banker magazine named Arion Bank as the Bank of the Year 2013 in Iceland. The magazine gave Arion Bank the award in
recognition of the greater diversity in the Bank’s funding, its reduced default ratio, the strong focus on product development, its efficient
online bank and the Arion Bank app. Arion Bank is very proud of this international recognition of the effort and hard work that has been
undertaken by the Bank’s employees over recent years and the award only encourages the Bank to do even better.

The Group had 1,145 full-time equivalent positions at the end of the year, compared with 1,190 at the end of 2012. 911 of these positions
were at the parent company Arion Bank hf., compared with 949 at the end of 2012.
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ENDORSEMENT AND STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND THE CEO

Outlook

Arion Bank is a leading financial institution on the Icelandic market and enjoys a strong position in all its business segments. In recent years
the Bank has reduced the risk in its loan portfolio by increasing the share of retail mortgage loans. The loan portfolio now comprises loans to
individuals and companies in equal measure. The Bank has also greatly improved the quality of its funding. The Bank is financially robust in
international comparisons and has a very good liquidity position.

The core of the Bank’s business is traditional banking activities now that debt recovery work has largely been completed. The Bank sees
great opportunity in strengthening the business relationship with the new customers from SPRON and Frjalsi Investment Bank and is
confident that the issues which have been on hold for many of them can be quickly resolved. The focus in the near future will be to further
improve operations and to take advantage of the foundations already in place to take the business forward. The Bank aims to continue
reducing operating expenses, mainly through automation and further optimization in both back office functions as well as the branch
network. The Bank will also concentrate on selling the remaining shareholdings acquired by the Bank as a result of the financial restructuring
of some of its corporate clients. Arion Bank’s financial position and risk distribution enables the Bank to support the expected growth in
activities of individual and corporate clients over the coming years. The Bank’s solid position, its rating from S&P and plans for new funding
will enable it to support its customers in their operations and investment activities domestically as well as in their current operation and
expansion internationally.

Risk Management

The Group faces various risks arising from its day-to-day operations as a financial institution. Managing risk is therefore a core activity within
the Group. The key to effective risk management is a process of on-going identification of significant risk, quantification of risk exposure,
actions to limit risk and constant monitoring of risk. This process of risk management and the ability to evaluate, manage and correctly price
the risk encountered is critical to the Group's continuing profitability as well as to be able to ensure that the Group's exposure to risk
remains within acceptable levels. The Group’s risk management, its structure, policy and main risk factors are addressed in the notes,
starting at Note 40.

Group ownership

Arion Bank is a group of financial undertakings which provide comprehensive financial services to companies, institutions and private
customers. These services include corporate banking, retail banking, investment banking and asset management. The Group includes
subsidiaries in the real estate sector, card services and insurance.

Kaupskil ehf., a company owned by Kaupthing hf., holds 87% of the shares in Arion Bank. The remaining shareholding of 13% is held by the

Icelandic State Financial Investments on behalf of the Icelandic government.

Corporate governance

The Board of Directors of Arion Bank is committed to good corporate governance and endeavours to promote responsible behaviour and
corporate culture within Arion Bank for the benefit of all the Bank’s stakeholders.
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ENDORSEMENT AND STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND THE CEO

Endorsement of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

It is our opinion that the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial performance and cash flows of the
Group for the year 2013 and its financial position as at 31 December 2013.

Further, in our opinion the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Endorsement of the Board of Directors and the CEO give a fair view of
the development and performance of the Group's operations and its position and describes the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group.

The Board of Directors and the CEO have today discussed the Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the year 2013 and

confirm them by means of their signatures. The Board of Directors and the CEO recommend that the Consolidated Financial Statements be
approved at the Annual General Meeting of Arion Bank.

Reykjavik, 26 February 2014

Board of Directors

Monica Caneman

L Coner
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Gudrun Johns pora Hallgrimsdotti

Chief Executive Officer

Mans Hoglund

e

Benedikt Olgeirsson

2=

Hoskuldur H. Olafsson
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Arion Bank.

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2013, Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December

2013, of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.

Confirmation of Endorsement and Statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Pursuant to the requirement of Paragraph 2 Article 104 of the Icelandic Financial Statement Act no. 3/2006, we confirm to the best of our
knowledge that the accompanying Endorsement and Statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO includes all information required by
the Icelandic Financial Statements Act that is not disclosed elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reykjavik, 26 February 2014

Ernst & Young ehf.

’/%0%7 Moot

Margrét Pétursdattir, Partner
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 2013

Notes 2013 2012
INEEIEST INCOMIE «.eiiiiee ettt e e e st e e e e e e s sttt aeeeeessbeeeeeeeesssbaaeaessassabaaeesensbsaeeeesnnssrans 56,867 59,094
INEEIEST EXPEINSE ...eiuvieeiieeieeitteete et et e steesteebeesteesteessseeste e seesssaasseasseesseaasaeasseenseasseesssesnseanseesseessseesseenseees (33,067) (31,952)
Net interest income 6 23,800 27,142
Fee and COMMISSION INCOMIE ...eiicveeieieeeeceee ettt et e eete e et e e tee e e etteeeetbeeeeateeesabaseeseeessseesanseeeesseeennreeesnrnes 16,443 16,166
FEe and COMMISSION EXPENSE .....eiiiiiiiieiieiteeite ettt ettt e st et e b e sbe e st e et e e sbeesabesabeeabe e st asseesaseenseenaeesasenas (5,220) (5,418)
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME .....uuuuerereeenenererrrrrrersrersrsrerssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssens 7 11,223 10,748
=Y Ao ol P ]I ol s o1 USSP 8 1,675 2,017
(04 =T oo o= e A [ =T e Tl TSRS 9 7,650 9,595
[0 oY1= 114 T= T3 T = S 44,348 49,502
Salaries and related EXPENSE .....ccuvivievieeieeeese et te et e st e ste e ste et e s aeeeeebeesaeesaeeesbeesbeesbaessseenbeenteesseeaneas 10 (13,537) (12,459)
Other OPEratiNg EXPENSE ...cuviivieetieetieeie et eeteeetteeteesteesttesbeesteesseesseesaseeseeasaesssessseebeesssessseenseeaseessseansennns 11 (11,858) (12,209)
NET IMPAITMENT ..ot st e st e e be et e esseeesteesteeseasseeesseenseeseesneessseenseesseessseensennsen 12 (680) (4,690)
EQrNings DEFOIE TaX ....cceeeeeeeeeememememmmennmmmsmsnsnsnsnsnsssnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssnsansnnn 18,273 20,144
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ...vviiuvieteeiuieeie et eetteeteeteesteeeteeeaseeseeaseassaesaseeseesseesssesaseenseesseessseesseetaessseasseenseenseenneas 13 (3,143) (3,633)
BANK TBVY .ttt ettt st sttt h e sh b a b e bt e b e e sh b e e a b e et e e bt e nteeateereeaeas 14 (2,872) (1,062)
Net earnings from continuiNg OPErations ..........ccccceeeiiiiiiirsnnneniieiiisssnnensissssssnssssssssssnns 12,258 15,449
Net gain from discontinued 0perations, NEt Of TAX ........ccceriervieriieiiieieeree e ae e see e e e aeenes 15 399 1,607
NEE AIMINGS ..eeeeeiicieieieierererererssssseses s s e s e s e s e s e s s s s s s s s s s s s s s e s s s s s e s e s e sasasasasasasasssssassssssssssssssssssasssesenenenenenenanenens 12,657 17,056
Attributable to
Shareholders Of ArION BANK ..........coiiiiiiiieieiiiiiiiee e eeiitee e e e eesiteeeeeeeesaareeeeeeeabaeeeeeseesbaseeeeesensbssseeeesassraeeeens 13,019 16,622
NON-CONTIOIIING INTEIEST ...uveivieceiieieeee sttt et e e st e st e et e e e e s e e s sbe e beesbeessaeesseesseesseeanseenseenseans (362) 434
NET CAININES ceuviiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiteiiiiiiieteeiiitirresessetetteenssssstetresssssssetteesssssssstsessssssssstessssssssssssensssssssssssnnssssss 12,657 17,056
Other comprehensive income
Exchange difference on translating foreign subsidiaries ...........cccooevenininiininnicie, (2) 2
Total comprehensive iNCOME fOr the YEar .......ciccciiieeiiiiiiiiineriiiiincnerensissssssessesssssssssssssssssssssssnsnasssens 12,655 17,058
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank (ISK) .........cccceevueen. 16 6.31 7.51

The notes on pages 13 to 71 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Assets Notes 2013 2012
Cash and balances With Central Bank ........cccviecuiiioieeeeieiceiee ettt ettt eetre e eere e eereeeereeeenaeeenneeeans 17 37,999 29,746
LoaNSs 1O Credit INSTILULIONS .....viiiiiie ettt e et e e e rta e e e tee e eaaeeessaeesaeeeesseeessneeesnreen 18 102,307 101,011
Loans to customers 19 635,774 566,610
FINANCIAL INSTIUMEBNTS ..eeiiiiiieiiiieectee ettt e et e et e e e te e e saaeesaaeeseabeeeesaeeesasaeesnsaeesnsaeessseeensseeannnen 20-22 86,541 137,800
INVESTMENT PrOPEITY ..vveiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt e e ettt e e s e et e e e s s e bbbt e e e e ssasbbeeeeeessasbbeeeeeannnraeeeeans 22 28,523 28,919
INVESEMENTS 1N @SSOCIATES .oiiiiiiiiiiietieeitieee ettt s st e e e e st tbe e e e e e s sateeeeeessasaaeeessasassseeeessnsnbsnanens 24 17,929 7,050
LR LY oq o L= T Y=Y £ SSRN 25 5,383 4,941
I D Y= £ T T T T T P U P P N 26 818 463
(0] 4 1T Y=L £SO P PSR OPRRRPRI 27 23,576 24,135

Total Assets 938,850 900,675

Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and CeNntral Bank .........cccceevieevieeieeneesie e et eseeseesteeteesteesaeseeeseeesneesseesnneens 21 28,000 32,990
[ D] o Yo 1Y 1 £ PRSPPSO PPPRRRTNY 21 471,866 448,683
Financial [iabilities @t fair VAIUE .......cccvveeceee ettt et e et e e etre e e eab e e eeareeeenneeeeabeeesanees 21 8,960 13,465
I D L o 11T =TSSP 26 4,924 3,237
(014 V=T =T o114 =TSRSS 28 43,667 42,117
Borrowings 21,29 204,568 195,085
] ool [Ta o1 e=Ye M IE] o 11 [ =Y R USROS 21,30 31,918 34,220

Total Liabilities 793,903 769,797

Equity
Share capital and Share PremMiUM .......cociiiieiie e ste st e s e e teeteesseessaeenseeseenseesens 32 75,861 75,861
OTNEI FTESEIVES ...veeieteiecitiee ettt e ettt e ettt e e s te e et e e e s teeeesaeassaeeabaeessaaessseeeasseeessbeeessseeesnsaeeansaeasssesansseeannseeanns 32 1,637 1,639
Retained earnings 62,591 49,572

Total Shareholders' Equity 140,089 127,072

NON-CONTIOIING INTEIEST ...vviieiiieeciie ettt ettt e st e e st e e e tae e e rsteeesateeesaseeeeasaeesnsseesnsseesnsseeeesseaeanes 4,858 3,806
Total Equity 144,947 130,878

Total Liabilities and Equity 938,850 900,675

The notes on pages 13 to 71 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR 2013

Total
Share capital Share- Non-
and share Other  Retained holders' controlling Total
premium reserves earnings equity interest equity
2013
Equity 1January 2013 .....cooiiiiiiiiieiieiieeee e 75,861 1,639 49,572 127,072 3,806 130,878
Total comprehensive income for the year ........c.cccceeeveene (2) 13,019 13,017 (362) 12,655
Increase in non-controlling interests
dUring the Year .......c.eveeiiiniieeeeeeee e 1,533 1,533
Decrease of non-controlling interest
due to dividend payment from subsidiary ..........cccccc...... (119) (119)
Equity 31 December 2013 ..........ccccvvvumreiiinissssnnnnnenesssssnnns 75,861 1,637 62,591 140,089 4,858 144,947
2012
Equity 1 January 2012 ......ccccceeevveeeineene . 75,861 1,637 32,950 110,448 4,110 114,558
Total comprehensive income for the year .........cccocvveeeennes 2 16,622 16,624 434 17,058
Decrease due to purchase of
Non-controlling iNterest .......cccceevveeveereenceesee e (738) (738)
Equity 31 December 2012 ... 75,861 1,639 49,572 127,072 3,806 130,878

The notes on pages 13 to 71 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR 2013

2013 2012
Operating activities
INEE BAININES .euvviiieeiiiiit et e ettt e ettt e e e e s sttt e e e e e s aaeeeeeeeaabbaaeee s s sabaseeeeesaatbbaeeeeeaasbaaeeeeeaanseeaeeesanssnssaeesssnsssaanes 12,657 17,056
Non-cash items included in net earnings and other adjustmEeNts .........coceereiriiiiiiniieiee e (20,930) (25,672)
Changes in operating assets and [IaDilIIES .........cecviiiieriee i e e s sareenaees (3,728) 8,063
INEEIEST FECEIVEM .oeeieeeiiiieee ettt ettt e e e ettt e e e e e et b e e e e e eeeabaeeeeeeesabbaaeeseeaassssaeeeeeaassaeaeesenssaaeeeeseenssbaseeeseanssrees 46,141 49,012
LA = T - YT OSSR (26,683) (23,865)
DiIVIAENT FECEIVEM ...ttt ettt sttt et e s bt e e a e e bt e bt e s h e e e abeeab e e bt e satesabeenbeesbeesabesabeenbeesaeesaneeanes 46 25
Income tax and DaNK [8VY Paid ......c.eeeueeiiiiiicicciese et et s e e e et s be e s e e et e e be e teesraeenteete e reenneas (2,149) (3,556)
Net cash from operating activities 5,354 21,063
Investing activities
Investment in associated companies ........... (40) (1,658)
Proceeds from sale of assoCiated COMPANIES .......oocuiiriiiiiiiiiieieeee ettt st ettt et et e be e esaes - 396
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible aSSets ........cccccvevierieerierie e (3,022) (1,674)
Proceeds from sale of property and @QUIPMENT ......cooiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt sttt s 185 30
Net cash used in investing activities (2,877) (2,906)
Financing activities
Decrease in NON-CONTrOHING INTEIEST ....c.eiiiiiiiiieet et ettt st sttt e be e s bt e st e e beenseenaeas (119) (738)
Net cash used in financing activities (119) (738)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ................ 2,358 17,419
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 105,173 82,815
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eqUIVAlENTS ........cceoriiriiiiiiiiienieee e (7,848) 4,939
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ..., 99,683 105,173
Non-cash investing and financing transactions
Assets acquired through foreclosure on collateral from customers with view to resale ..........cccccceevveveencenenenne 9,017 2,051
Settlement of loans through foreclosure on collateral from customers with view to resale .........ccccoecvevieniiene (9,017) (2,051)

* Interest paid includes interest credited to deposit accounts at the end of the year.

The notes on pages 13 to 71 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR 2013

2013 2012
Non-cash items included in net earnings and other adjustments
NET INEEIEST INCOME ...ueiviieeieeiecete ettt ettt et e et e et e e teestaeeaeebeeebeeeaeeeaseesbeeesaeesaesaseesseenseessaessesnseesseseasaseenseans (23,799) (27,142)
NEt IMPAITMENT ..ot e s s 680 4,690
Income tax expense .. 3,143 3,633
L2019 =1 VPSS 2,872 1,062
Net foreign eXChange 0SS (BAIN) .ecveveiuiriiiiitirieiee ettt ettt et et e bt st esbe st e s be e st e besbesseesbesbesseensenbensanns 1,766 (1,434)
Net gain on fiNaNCial INSTIUMENTS ....c.viiiiiiiice et e e te et e e s e e s e e eeeeseesseesnnesseeseesres (3,395) (561)
Depreciation and @amMOFTISATION ........cueiiciieiiiie et e e ste e e ae e e s ree e e aeeesbeeesbeeesbaeeesbeaeasseeesssaeeanreeaannes 1,788 1,436
Share of profit of associates and fair value Change .........c.covieiieiiiiiiicce e s e ae e (1,986) (2,405)
Investment property, fair Value ChanEE .........ooui ittt ettt e be e be e e re e saaeebeeaeeenaens (1,219) (1,584)
Net gain on disposal of investment in associates ... - (396)
Net gain on disposal of property and @QUIPMENT ......c.ceciiiiiiiieieceeeeee e se e te e te e e s aeeeeeeeessaeenes (9) (8)
Net gain on disposal of INVESTMENT ProPEIrtY ......coceiriiriiiie ettt sttt et et e b aees (372) (1,356)
Net gain from discontinued 0perations, NEt Of TAX .......cccerieriieriiieieeiee et see e e s aeeeeesreesraesnns (399) (1,607)
Non-cash items included in net earnings and other adjustments ..........ccceverveniinienenencnncencennne (20,930) (25,672)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Mandatory reserve With Central Bank ...........cooeiieieiiniiiieieie ettt sttt s saenae e e aene (250) (177)
LOANS 1O Credit INSTITUTIONS ..viiiieeieciecciecee ettt e s ae et e e te e st e e e aaeete e aeesseeeaeeenseesseesaneenseeseesseessneenss (15,225) (9,729)
Loans to customers ......... (31,027) 3,008
Financial instruments (14,373) 30,000
Investment property 2,132 (44)
ORI @SSELS ..eiiuvveeietrieeetee e et e ettt e eeteeeestteeeetteeeetbeeeeseeeeseeesbeeesebaeessseesasbaeeaasseeanseeeansseeesesessseesanseeeanseeenrseeesnees 3,363 12,775
Due to credit institutions and CeNral BanK ..........cccuecieiiiieieeiie et e et e ereesteeste e reeeaeeteesseeeseesaseeseenseesnes (4,569) 16,901
[T oY 1 1 £SO 44,551 (45,537)
BOITOWINES ..ottt ettt ettt ettt sttt e sttt e ea e e s a bt e e s ab et e et b e e e st e e e se e e s ans e e e aaseeseabeeesabeeesabseesbbeeensbeeesnneeesnnneenanee 11,633 422
Other liabilities ... 37 444
Changes in operating assets and liabilities ........cccceevvveeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiir s (3,728) 8,063
Cash and cash equivalents comprises
Cash in hand and demMand dEPOSITS .....eereirieeiieeriieriesie e et e e e te et e e se e eeesaeebeesbeestaessseesbeesseesssesseesnseenseans 37,999 29,746
DUE FromM Credit INSTIEULIONS ...vviiiieeieiie et ccee ettt et e b e e e taeeeeaaeeeeaaeeeasseeeeaseeeeaseeesaseeessseessseeeesseeeanns 70,671 84,164
Mandatory reserve With CeNntral Bank .........ccceiciiiieiiieeieeieesee ettt se e aeesteesteessaessaeeeeeseesseessseenseenseesens (8,987) (8,737)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year ...........iiiiiiiireeiiiiiiiineeerees e ssssssssnssasssens 99,683 105,173

The notes on pages 13 to 71 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Arion banki hf., the Parent Company, was established 18 October 2008 and is incorporated and domiciled in Iceland. The registered
office of Arion banki hf. is located at Borgartun 19, Reykjavik. The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 comprise
the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group").

1. Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements are consolidated and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as
endorsed by the European Union.

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of Arion Bank on 26 February 2014.

Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:
— Financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value;
— Investment properties are measured at fair value; and
— Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value,
less costs to sell.

Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Icelandic Krona (ISK), which is the Parent Company's functional currency, rounded to the
nearest million unless otherwise stated. At the end of the year the exchange rate of the ISK against the USD was 115.09 and 158.49 for
the EUR (2012: USD 128.09 and EUR 168.89).

2. Significant accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The preparation of the Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
The key sources of estimation uncertainty are within:

- impairment losses and reversal of impairment losses on loans;

- the foreign currency loan portfolio caused by legal dispute and court judgements ;

- investment property; and

- assets classified as held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. The Group

Shares in main subsidiaries in which Arion Bank held a direct interest at the end of the year
Equity interest

Country Currency 2013 2012
AFL - sparisjodur, Adalgata 34, Siglufjoraur .......cccceevieveiininieceeee Iceland ISK 99.3% 99.3%
Arion Bank Mortgages Institutional Investor Fund, Borgartun 19, Reykjavik ................. Iceland ISK 100.0% 100.0%
BG12 slhf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik Iceland ISK 62.0% -
EAB 1 ehf., Borgartun 19, Reykjavik Iceland ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Eignabjarg ehf., Alfheimar 74, Reykjavik Iceland ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Eignarhaldsfélagid Landey ehf., Hatin 2b, Reykjavik .........ccccevvueeveeiienieeeeseeseesieens Iceland ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Landfestar ehf., Alfheimar 74, ReYKJaViK ..........cccceevueveieeveieeisieeiesieisie et Iceland ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Okkar liftryggingar hf., SOItUn 26, REYKJAVIK .....eevveerereeiieiieciieciecie et Iceland ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Stefnir hf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik .........ccceiriiiiiniiiiiiiiiciceniceecseeeeee Iceland ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Valitor Holding hf., Dalshraun 3, Hafnarfjoraur .........ccceeeeeveenieniie e Iceland ISK 60.8% 60.8%

In addition the Bank holds subsidiaries classified as Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale, see Note 27.

Changes within the Group

Arion Bank hf. established BG12 slhf. in partnership with others to manage the shareholding of Bakkavér Group Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segments based on the Group’s management and internal
reporting structure. Segment performance is evaluated based on earnings before tax.

Inter segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. Business segments pay and receive interest to and from Treasury on an
arm's length basis to reflect the allocation of capital and funding cost.

Operating segments
The Group comprises six main operating segments:

Corporate Banking provides services to the Bank’s larger corporate clients. Its role is to provide comprehensive financial services and
tailored services to meet the needs of each company.

Retail Banking, including Arion Bank Mortgages Institutional Investor Fund and AFL Sparisjédur, provide a comprehensive range of
services. That includes among other advice on deposits and loans, savings, payment cards, pension savings, insurance, securities and
funds. To maximize operational efficiency the branch network is divided into six clusters, with the smaller branches capitalizing on the
strength of larger units within each cluster. Customers of Retail Banking's 25 branches all around Iceland are over 100,000.

The Asset Management division comprises Institutional Asset Management, Private Banking and Investment Services. Asset
Management manages financial assets on behalf of its clients according to a pre-determined investment strategy. In addition the
division is the main distributor of funds managed by Stefnir hf. to individuals, companies and institutional investors as well as
distributing funds managed by international fund management companies. Stefnir hf. is an independently operating financial company
owned by Arion Bank. Stefnir manages a broad range of mutual funds, investment funds and institutional investor funds.

Investment Banking is divided into Corporate Advisory, Capital Markets and Research. Corporate Advisory advises clients on securities
offerings and the admission of securities for trading on regulated securities markets and also provides M&A advisory services. Capital
Markets handles securities brokerage and foreign exchange trading for the Bank’s clients. Research publishes regular analyses of listed
securities, the major business sectors, markets and the Icelandic economy and also produces economic forecasts. Investment
Banking’s clients are private individuals, companies and institutions.

Treasury is responsible for the Bank’s liquidity management as well as currency and interest rate management. The other main
functions of Treasury are the internal pricing of interest rates and currency and liaison with other financial institutions.

Other divisions and Subsidiaries include market making in domestic securities and currencies. The subsidiaries are Eignabjarg ehf.,
Eignarhaldsfélagid Landey ehf., Landfestar ehf., Okkar liftryggingar hf., Valitor holding hf. and other smaller entities of the Group.

Headquarters: Overhead, Risk Management, Accounting, Legal, Operations and Corporate Development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. The Group's business segments

Asset Other Head-

Manage- divisions quarters

2013 Corporate Retail mentand Investment and Sub- and
Banking  Banking Stefnir Banking  Treasury sidiaries Elimination Total
Net interest iNCOMe ......ccceeevevveruenenne 8,630 12,058 560 120 3,813 (1,473) 92 23,800
Other income ......ccceceeveneneenicnenene 685 2,507 3,141 4,302 (1,1203) 10,264 752 20,548
Operating income . 9,315 14,565 3,701 4,422 2,710 8,791 844 44,348
Operating expense (658) (5,518) (774) (596) (244) (5,409) (12,196) (25,395)
Net impairment ........ccoceeeeeveevenennenne 3,789 (5,694) (3) 1,738 420 (311) (619) (680)
Earnings before tax ........cccceeeueennnee 12,446 3,353 2,924 5,564 2,886 3,071 (11,971) 18,273
Net seg. rev. from ext. customers ..... 16,780 24,805 1,462 4,087 (13,995) 11,616 (407) 44,348
Net seg. rev. from other segments .... (7,465) (10,240) 2,239 335 16,705 (2,825) 1,251 -
Operating income .......ccceeeeeirrrennnnnens 9,315 14,565 3,701 4,422 2,710 8,791 844 44,348
Depreciation and amortisation ......... - 166 - - - 281 1,341 1,788
Total assets ......cccerrerenericrersissnnnnnne 248,082 397,721 4,840 34,799 168,334 77,150 7,924 938,850
Total liabilities ........ccccoceereevnerirenennn. 208,389 356,086 1,781 29,231 148,696 42,746 6,974 793,903
Allocated equity .......cceeeeeereicnnnnnennns 39,693 41,635 3,059 5,568 19,638 34,404 950 144,947

2012

Net interest income .......ccccceeeveenenne 10,300 11,437 1,814 (6) 4,857 (1,218) (42) 27,142
Other income ......cocceceeveneneeicnenee 1,134 2,837 2,356 4,516 (196) 10,804 909 22,360
Operating income .........cceeeeeeeenennnees 11,434 14,274 4,170 4,510 4,661 9,586 867 49,502
Operating eXpense ........cccceeeeeereennens (605) (5,448) (1,651) (599) (191) (4,755) (11,419) (24,668)
Net impairment .......cccceveeveerienneens (270) (5,516) 9 1,095 164 (81) (91) (4,690)
Earnings before tax 10,559 3,310 2,528 5,006 4,634 4,750 (10,643) 20,144
Net seg. rev. from ext. customers ..... 20,600 23,553 489 4,243 (11,477) 11,292 802 49,502
Net seg. rev. from other segments .... (9,166) (9,279) 3,681 267 16,138 (1,706) 65 -
Operating income .........cceeeeeeeenennnees 11,434 14,274 4,170 4,510 4,661 9,586 867 49,502
Depreciation and amortisation ......... - 170 - - - 198 1,068 1,436
Total @ssets .....ccecveerrereerrissnenisnnnennes 251,384 318,700 4,597 26,000 212,315 80,057 7,622 900,675
Total liabilities ........cccoceereeeerirenennn. 211,444 291,701 1,497 22,784 185,326 50,338 6,707 769,797
Allocated equity .......cceeeeeereicennnennns 39,940 26,999 3,100 3,216 26,989 29,719 915 130,878

The vast majority of the revenues from external customers is attributable to customers in Iceland.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the profit and loss segment information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QUARTERLY STATEMENTS

5. Operations by quarters

2013 Q4 Q3 Q2 Ql Total
Net iNterest INCOME ...ciiiiiiiiei e e e 5,487 5,646 6,379 6,288 23,800
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME ......oeevviieiirieecciieeecreeecree et eanes 2,939 2,986 2,849 2,449 11,223
Net financial iNCOME (EXPENSE) ...ovuvirierriiiriiirieeiece ettt 721 658 1,123 (827) 1,675
Other operating iNCOME ......cociiiiiecieeceeceeee e e 3,615 1,610 1,249 1,176 7,650
OPErating INCOME .....cceeeeeeeeeeeememiniieneieiesssasssasasssssassssses 12,762 10,900 11,600 9,086 44,348
Salaries and related EXPENSE .......covveriierieerieenie et (4,098) (2,760) (3,357) (3,322) (13,537)
Other Operating EXPENSE ....c.vcvverieeiecreereeeee e ete e seeebeesreesreessaeereenes (3,114) (2,516) (2,951) (3,277) (11,858)
NEt IMPAITMENT ...oiiiiiiiiie et (561) (253) 456 (322) (680)
Earnings before taxX .......ccccceeeiiciirnnneniieiiisnsnnneesiesecsssnnenns 4,989 5,371 5,748 2,165 18,273
LI (o 1= 4 LY <SS (2,864) (1,214) (1,260) (677) (6,015)
Net earnings from continuing operations .........cccoeceeiiieeercseericseeininnees 2,125 4,157 4,488 1,488 12,258
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taX .........cccccceevvvennene 402 62 14 (79) 399
Net @arnings .....ccccvviiiiiiiiiiiiinii 2,527 4,219 4,502 1,409 12,657
2012

Net iNterest INCOME ...iiiiiiiiiee e ra e e e 7,008 6,254 7,666 6,214 27,142
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME ......eeivveiiiirieicciie ettt eanes 2,695 2,715 3,002 2,336 10,748
Net financial iNCOME (EXPENSE) ...ovuvirierriiiriiirieeie ettt 967 869 (1,248) 1,429 2,017
Other operating iNCOME .......cciiiiieieecie et 4,952 1,637 2,054 952 9,595
OPErating INCOME .....cceeeeeeeeeememeiininieiiiesesasaesasasesasessssssssssssess 15,622 11,475 11,474 10,931 49,502
Salaries and related EXPENSE .......cocveeiirrieirienie ettt (3,646) (2,644) (3,124) (3,045) (12,459)
(08 V=T = (o 1= o 1 <SOSR (4,148) (2,586) (2,718) (2,757) (12,209)
NEt IMPAIMMENT ..eoiiiiiieieeee et sb e (5,169) (2,053) 2,608 (76) (4,690)
Earnings before tax .... 2,659 4,192 8,240 5,053 20,144
TAX EXPENSE .evveenveerereeereeteesteestteeteesteesseessseanseesseasssesssessseesseesssessseesseessennns (549) (723) (2,094) (1,329) (4,695)
Net earnings from continuing operations .. 2,110 3,469 6,146 3,724 15,449
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 409 (181) 652 727 1,607
Net earnings .....ccccceeeeriiiiisinnneeiiiiiisneneeeesiesnnens 2,519 3,288 6,798 4,451 17,056

The half-year results were reviewed by the Bank's auditor. The quarterly statements and the split between quarters were not audited
or reviewed by the Bank's auditor.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2013 17 Amounts are in ISK millions




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

6. Net interest income

Interest income

[DT=T oo 1] 1 £ OSSP PRI
BOITOWINES eeiiiiiiiitiee e ettt ettt e e e ettt e e e s et e e e e e s sttt e e e e e e s abeteeeee e abeaaeeseaasbaaeeesaassbaaaeessasbbaaeeessssssbaaeesenansranes
0] T e [0 o1 =Te BT o1 =PRSS

Net interest income from assets and liabilities at fair Value .........coccuveiiiiiiiii e
Interest income from assets NOt At fAIr VAIUE ........ceiuiiiiiiiiccee ettt et e e s ta e e naaeas
Interest expense from liabilities not at fair value
Net interest income ..................

7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income

Collection aNd PAYMENT SEIVICES .....eieiiieeeiiieeeiieeciieeeereeeeteeeeteeestaeesstaeeessseeesssaeaassaeeassaeaaasseeassseesnsseesasseeesssneesnns
INVESTMENT DANKING «.eevveitieeiieeteeee sttt te et e e s e s ae st e e be e s bt e saseesseesbeesseesssaessaenteeseesssaansesnseenseanseesnes
INEEIDANK CIEAMINEG ..eeieiiee ettt ettt e s e e et e e e te e e e saeeesteeessaeaaseeaansseesasaeessseesnsseeeasseeessseeesnsseeanses
LeNAING AN GUATANTEES ...ecuvieieeiiieiieeteeiteestesteesteerteesteeeeeeteesseesseessseebeesseesaseesbeesbeesseessseasseenseesseessseensesnseensennnen
Other fee and COMMISSION INCOME .....uviiiiiieeiiiee et e et et e e e e s tee e eaeeeeaaeeeaaeeessseeeesbeeessbeeesssaeeasseaensseeensseeannnen
Fee and COMMISSION INCOME ....ciiiuiiiiieiiiiiiiiiie ettt a e s s s sas e s s ab e s s as e s s aneessnnnes

Fee and commission expense

ColleCtion and PAYMENT SEIVICES .....ccuiirierieeieeiteeseeste st esteesteestee s teeteesteessseasseesseeseassseasseenseesseessaesssessseesseessnesns
INVESTMENT DANKING ..vveeiiiieeciiee et e et e e e eta e e et e e e taeeeebeeeeabeeesabaeeassaeeesseeessseeeasseeeansaeannsseessseennseen
INEEIDANK CIEAIINEG ...vveiiieeie ettt ettt e et s e e st e e te e te et e e s aeeaaeeeateesseesseesaseenseenseesseessseesseesseesseessseensennes
Other fee and COMMISSION EXPENSE ....ccuviiieiieeeitieeiteeeete e e et eeeteeestaeeestaeeessbeeeasteeaassaeaaseeaasseeasseesasseesssseesnsseeens

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME .....uueuueeeeerciercicrerereresesere e sesesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssassnssssasasanan

2013 2012
628 650
48,932 49,112
6,630 8,790
677 542
56,867 59,094
(19,108)  (17,769)
(12,568)  (12,572)
(1,334) (1,520)
(57) (91)
(33,067)  (31,952)
23,300 27,142
6,630 8,790
50,237 50,304
(33,067)  (31,952)
23,800 27,142
3,388 2,715
7,895 8,951
1,157 871
1,266 722
707 706
986 1,098
1,044 1,103
16,443 16,166
(138) (192)
(3,648) (3,956)
(56) (17)
(175) (40)
(704) (723)
(499) (490)
(5,220) (5,418)
11,223 10,748

Asset management fees are earned by the Group on trust and fiduciary activities where the Group holds or invests assets on behalf of

the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Net financial income 2013 2012
DiIVIAENT INCOMIE ..ttt ettt ettt et e s hee st e et e e be e she e sab e e st e et e e ebeeeabeeabeenb e e bt e eabeeateeaseenseesabesaseensean 46 25
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held for trading ........cccoecvevveveeneenieeicnens 475 (298)
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss ............. 2,920 856
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) (1,766) 1,434
AT B TR T TS 1 I Uele Ty s V=T 1,675 2,017
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading
Net gain (loss) on equity instruments and related derivatives ..........ccoceririeiieneneeiee e 690 456
Net gain (loss) on interest rate instruments and related derivatives ...........cccvevverieeie e s (61) (502)
Net gain (loss) on other derivatives (154) (252)
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading ........cccccceeiiiirinreiiiiiiinnncnnenninsicsnnenns 475 (298)
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
Net gain (loss) on equity instruments designated at fair ValUe .........ccceeeveicieineenie e 2,232 776
Net gain (loss) on interest rate instruments designated at fair value ..........cocoevieiiiniieiiinienceeeeeeee e 688 80
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss ........ 2,920 856

9. Other operating income
Share Of Profit Of @SSOCIATES ....c.uieuiiciiiiierie ettt e et e s e st e e te e saesseeeaseesseesseesseessseenseeseees 1,986 2,405
Rental income from iNVESTMENT PrOPEITY ......oocuiiiiiiieeie ettt sttt ettt ettt e st e b e e bt e aeesbeeneenbeesaes 2,303 2,184
Fair value changes on iNVESTMENT PrOPEITY ...ccceevieiieeiieieeseeete et eseeesteeeeesseesseesseeeseeseesseesssessseesseessnesssesssennes 1,219 1,584
Realised gain 0N iNVESTMENT PrOPEITY ......oiviiiiiiiieiie ettt sttt e bt e s at e ab e et e ebee s st e sabesseesseesaeesasesnseas 372 1,356
Earned premiums, NEt Of FEINSUIANCE ....cc.ceciieiieiieieecie et et et e e e eae e te e teesteesaeeeeete e seessneeaseeseasseesssessseensensses 1,073 918
Net gain on disposals of assets other than held fOr SAle .......cuiiiiii i 9 396
ONEI INCOME ..ttt bt e a et b e bt et b e bt e bt et e bt bt e st e bt e bt ea e et e ebeea e et e bt eae et enbesbeeanennes 688 752
Other 0perating iNCOME ......cceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit e as s se e seans 7,650 9,595
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
PrEMIUM WETEEIN L.euuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiittttiee ettt e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeereeeeeeeeeeseeesaeeeaaeeeeaeaeaaeeeeeeaaeeeeeeeaeeaaeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaaaaaaees 1,235 1,075
OUtWArd reiNSUrANCE PrEIMIUIMS ...cc.viivieiteereeeteesteesteesseeasteesseesseesseesssessseessesssesssseessesssesssssssseessesssessssssssesssesssesssens (118) (99)
Change in the gross provision for unearned PremMilumS .........ocueeiiiiiirieeie ettt (44) (58)
Earned premiums, net of FEINSUIANCE ......ccccceeiiiiiiiiiiinneniiiiiiiinnieniissssssnens e ssssssssessssesssssansssssssssssnsnsnsssssssssans 1,073 918

10. Personnel and salaries
The Group's total number of employees
Average number of full time equivalent positions dUriNg YA ..........cocveiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 1,159 1,166
Full time equivalent positions at the end Of the YT .......ccvivie et ee s 1,145 1,190
The Bank's total number of employees
Average number of full time equivalent positions dUring the Year .........ccccceeveereeiiecieeceeseece e 923 927
Full time equivalent positions at the end Of the YA ......coc.iiiii i 911 949
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Personnel and salaries, continued

Salaries and related expense 2013 2012
Y1 T =TSSP 10,289 9,562
Defined contribution PENSION PIANS ........ecciiiiieiiecie ettt e e e et e e sre e st e et e e beesaaeesseenteeseessseanseenseans 1,436 1,288
SAIATY FEIATEU EXPENSE .oeuvieeeiieeeeiee ettt e ettt e et e et e e eae e e e beeestaeeesbeeeasseeesssaeaassaeaassseessseesassaeeassaeessseeessaeesnsseeases 1,812 1,609
Salaries and related EXPENSE .....ciciiiiiiieeiiiiiiiiiiireeieieiiisnetetessssisssssessessessssnssessssssssssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssanssans 13,537 12,459

Salaries and related expense for the Bank

SAIATIES wreeiureeeeteeeecteeeecte e e eeteeeett e e ete e e et e e e beeeaetae e e et beeeaabeeeabeeeabaeeabaeeeabaeeeahaeeeahaeeeaabeeeabeeeaabeeeabaeeaatreeeanreeeanreeeans 8,117 7,127
Defined contribution PeNnSioN PIANS ..........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 1,133 960
SAlArY FEIATEA EXPENSE ..eeuvveeiieiietiesee et et et e ste st e et esteesteeesbe e te e seessaeasseenseenseaaseeesseenseeseesssessseenseesseessseenseenseenes 1,406 1,592
Salaries and related EXPENSE ......cccceeeeeeeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeneee s enesansssssssnsssnsssssssnsssssssssssnsssnsssssnssssrensrannnnnnne 10,656 9,679

In 2013 the Group made a provision of ISK 494 million (2012: ISK 78 million) for performance plan payments, including salary related
expense. Forty per cent of the payment is deferred for three years in accordance with FME rules on remuneration policy for financial
undertakings. In 2013 the Bank made a provision of ISK 452 million (2012: nil).

2013 2012

Fixed Additional Fixed Additional

remuner- remuner- remuner- remuner-
Compensation of key management personnel ation' ation’ Total ation' ation’ Total
Monica Caneman, Chairman of the Board ............ccccuveneeee. 16.8 1.8 18.6 16.8 1.8 18.6
Gudrun Johnsen, Vice-Chairman of the Board . 6.3 3.6 9.9 6.3 3.6 9.9
Agnar Kofoed-Hansen, Director ........ccocceveeevieenieeneenienieene 4.2 3.6 7.8 4.2 3.2 7.4
Freyr Pordarson, Director (1.1.-13.5.2013) ...cccevveeeecreennen. 1.6 0.9 2.5 3.5 1.5 5.0
JON G. Briem, Dir€CtOr ....oeevveeeeiieeeiiee ettt eeree e 4.2 2.3 6.5 4.2 4.1 8.3
Mans Hoglund, Director .. 8.4 3.6 12.0 8.4 3.6 12.0
bdra Hallgrimsdottir, DIrector ......ceeecveeeecieeeeieeeceee e 3.5 1.1 4.6 - - -
Bjorg Arnardattir, alternate director .........ccceeveeeveeviieeneennns 3.0 1.0 4.0 0.7 - 0.7
Other alternate directors of the Board .........cccccevveevvenennnnee. 5.2 2.5 7.7 3.9 0.5 4.4
Total remuneration 53.2 20.4 73.6 48.0 18.3 66.3
2013 2012
HOSKUIAUE H. OIafSSON, CEO ...oueuuircereisiiceeeseceeeseescesessess s ess e ssees e ssees sttt ss e nneen 50.7 44.5
Nine managing directors of the Bank's divisions being members of the Bank's Executive Committee .............. 219.9 227.6

Board Members receive remuneration for their involvement in board committees. In addition to 13 Board meetings (2012: 14), during
the year 14 Board Credit Committee meetings (2012: 20), 6 Board Audit and Risk Committee meetings (2012: 10) and 5 Board
Remuneration Committee meetings (2012: 6) were held. Five committee meetings with alternate directors of the Board were held in
2013.

The 2013 Annual General Meeting of the Bank held on 21 March 2013 approved the monthly salaries for 2013 for the Chairman, Vice
Chairman and for other Board Members of amounts ISK 700,000, ISK 525,000 and ISK 350,000 (2012: ISK 700,000; 525,000; 350,000)
respectively. It was also approved that the salary of Alternate Board Members would be ISK 175,000 (2012: ISK 175,000) per meeting,
up to a maximum of ISK 350,000 (2012: ISK 350,000) per month. For Board Members resident abroad, the aforementioned figures are
doubled. In addition, it was approved to pay Board Members who serve on board committees of the Bank a maximum of ISK 150,000
(2012: I1SK 150,000) per month for each committee they serve on.

1. Fixed remuneration represents Board Member compensation for their attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors.
2. Additional remuneration represents Board Member compensation for their participation in Board Committees.
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12,

11. Other operating expense 2013 2012
ADMINISTIATION EXPENSE ..eviieiiiieciie et et et e e ree e et e e e te e e s taeeestbeeesstaeeaataeaassaeaasseeasseessseesasseeessseeesaseeessaeeesres 8,398 9,142
Depositors' and iNVestors' SUArantee fUNG .........ccciiiieriie it te et eeae e e e e s eeeraeeneenreesnes 791 899
Depreciation of property and EQUIPMENT .......ooui ittt sttt ettt st et et e e bt e st e satesbeenaeesaee 1,228 899
Amortisation of intangible assets 560 537
Direct operating expense derived from rental-earning investment properties ..........ccccceveerverreenieenieeneesieeneene 547 499
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance 323 233
ONEI EXPENSE ..ttt ettt ettt st et e bt e sht e e ab e e be e bt esaeeeat e e bt e st e eaeeeabeenbeeaaeesabeeaseenbeesasesabeenbeesbeeenbeenbeenee 11 -
Other operating expense 11,858 12,209
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
[0 1T 0 o T 1o PSPPSRSO 368 324
Change in the Provision fOr ClaiMS ........couio it ettt et e bt e st e et e esbeenneas 40 (38)
Claims paid, Net Of rEINSUMEIS' SNATE ......ccuiiiieciece ettt s e s e e be e teessaeenaeeteenaeensaeanes (118) (63)
Change in the provision for claims, reinsurers' share 33 10
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance 323 233
Auditor's fee
2013 EY KPMG Total
Audit and review of the Financial Statements ........cccocerieiirinirie e 141 7 148
Other aUdit rElated SEIVICES .....coiuiiiiiiieeieete ettt ettt et e st e st e st e e bt e s bt e saaesateenseas 27 - 27
AUILOr'S FEE ..eoiireeiiieiiiiieice ettt s 168 7 175
2012
Audit and review of the Financial STatemMeNts ........cccovirieririnieieee e 137 16 153
Other aUdit related SEIVICES .....coiiiiiiiieeeeete ettt ettt sb e st et e bt e st e satesabeenneas 33 9 42
OENEE SEIVICE ...ttt b e bt ettt h et e et e s h e st et e s bt e ae et e nbesbe et e b e nbeebeenee - 2 2
S XE T L1 3 T 170 27 197
Net impairment 2013 2012
Reversal of impairment of loans to corporates 7,769 12,098
Reversal of impairment of loans to individuals 1,330 726
IMpPairment Of 10aNS tO COMPOTAES ....ccuiiiiiieiie ettt ettt et e et e bt e s ate st e ebeesaeesatesaseebeenaes (3,093) (12,074)
Impairment of 10aNns to Credit INSTITUTIONS .....cc.vicieicieeiieree et e e ae et e et e s e e e tesseesaeesseesaseenaeas - (70)
Impairment of 10aNs tO INIVIAUAIS ....co..oiiiiieie et sttt ettt et et e b e e aeesaee e (4,900) (5,956)
Collective (IMPAIFMENT) FEVETSA ......iiciiieieeieceecee ettt e et s e et e et e e st e e s e e e eeeseesseesseeenseasseesseessnesnsannses (947) 586
Impairment of INTANGIDIE @SSELS ....c.ui ittt ettt et s e e et et e sae e saneebeenaes (839) -
NEt IMPAIIMENT ...ceeriiiiiiiiieetiieiiiieeee e ssesesssesessssnstesssessssssnssssssssssssnssessssssssssnssesssessssssnnssssssssssnnnsssssssses (680) (4,690)
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13. Income tax expense 2013 2012
CUTITENT TAX EXPEINSE . .tiieiieeeeiteeeitee et te et e s st e e sttt e sttt e sabe e e e ae e e e s bt e e st eeeaaseeeeaseeeeaseeesasbeesanseesnnseeesabeeesaseeesnnneennnne 3,627 3,160
DL (T Lo I D Q=) o 1=Y 1 <SS (484) 473
INCOME FAX EXPENSE eeuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiititiiiiiertieiiir ettt rertsassstestetsasssseestetsssssssssestessssssssetesssssssssetessnsssssesenes 3,143 3,633
Reconciliation of effective tax rate 2013 2012
EQrnings DEFOIrE TAX ...eiuieiecciieiiecie ettt et e st e e te et e e e e enaeenneenneas 18,273 20,144
Income tax using the Icelandic corporation tax rate ..........ccceceevevineecicnininiccnenee 20.0% 3,655 20.0% 4,030
Additional 6% tax on financial iINSTITUTIONS .......ccccecieriririereeeeeeeee e 4.7% 865 3.1% 621
Non-deductible expenses .. 1.7% 305 0.1% 25
TaX EXEMPE FEVENUE ....eeueieiieeeieeieesieeeteete et esreeseeesseebeesseessseasseesseesssesssesnseeseenseesseennes (6.5%) (1,183) (6.5%) (1,318)
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax l0SSES .........ccceeveiriiriieeiienienieeieeeenee e (3.5%) (641) (2.9%) (578)
(014 =T 1 T Y=L SR 0.8% 142 4.2% 853
Effective tax rate 17.2% 3,143 18.0% 3,633

Financial institutions pay 6% additional tax on taxable profit exceeding ISK 1.0 billion.

14. Bank levy

Bank levy is calculated according to law. The levy for the year 2013 is 0.376% on total debt excluding tax liabilities, in excess of ISK 50
billions, at end of the year. Non-financial subsidiaries are exempt from this tax. The total rate for this tax was 0.1285% for the year
2012 on debt excluding tax liabilities. The tax is assessed on financial institutions to meet the funding of a special index and interest
relief provided to individual tax payers.

15. Net gain from discontinued operations, net of tax 2013 2012
Net gain (105S) from 1€Zal ENTILIES ....cc.iiceiecie et e e ae e te et e s e e e aeese e seessaessseesseeseesrneans 10 836
Net gain (loss) from associated COMPANIES ......cceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e sne s 250 1,376
Net gain (105S) fromM FrEal @STATE ....cc.eeiuiieiececce et s e st e e e e ste e sraeeste e seesseesseeenseenseannean 60 (577)
Net gain (105S) frOM OthEr @SSEES ...ccuiiiiiiiiiierte ettt sttt e bt e s e e st e sbe e be e saeesabesbeenaes 79 (28)
Net gain from discontinued operations, NEt Of TAX .......ccccvvreiiiiiiiirrinnneiiiiicisnneeesesesssssnneesssssssssnsssssssssssssnssenss 399 1,607

Net gain (loss) from legal entities comprises the Group's share of net profit after tax from operations of legal entities that were
classified as held for sale during the year.

16. Earnings per share Discontinued operations
Excluded Included
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net earnings attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank ........cc.cceveeveenienieniienns 12,620 15,015 13,019 16,622
Weighted average number of outstanding shares for the year, million ...........cc.c......... 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
BasiC €arnings PEI SNAME .....cc.vievieieeciece ettt s re e s sae e beesteesrneas 6.31 7.51 6.51 8.31

There were no instruments at the end of the year that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share (2012: none).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

17. Cash and balances with Central Bank 2013 2012
[0 1 1 e Ta 1 4 =12 T IO SRRSO 4,099 3,495
Cash WIth CeNTral BAnK .......eecciieiiiee ettt e et e e et e e e st e e e s asaeeesaeesaseesesseeensseeessseeesnseeessseeanns 24,912 17,514
Mandatory reserve deposit with Central Bank 8,987 8,737
Cash and balances with Central Bank 37,999 29,746
The mandatory reserve deposit with Central Bank is not available for the Group to use in its daily operations.

18. Loans to credit institutions
Loans to credit institutions
BANK @CCOUNTS ..veieiuviieiiiie ettt e eette e e ettt e eeteeeeteeeeeteeesetaeesetseeeesseeeesbeeesabeeesebseessssseesseeeassaseansesesnsseessseesasseeennseeesnseeesans 70,671 84,164
[\ Le a1V 0 F= T = A (o - [ LSRR 26,197 13,763
(0] 4 o T=T g (o T-T 4 LSOO PRSPPI 5,439 3,888
PrOVISION ON TOBNS ...ttt ettt ettt e st e et e bt e bt e s bt e sab e et e e bt e sbeesabeeabeeabe e sbesatesaseenseenaeesanenas - (804)
LOANS £0 Credit INSHILULIONS ...cceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereneneeeneenmemessssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnssnsssssssasssssasasss 102,307 101,011
Changes in the provision for losses on loans to credit institutions
Balance at the beginning Of ThE YT ......cciii it e e e sae e s s e s baebeesteesnaeeneeenes 804 774
Provision for losses (reversal) - 70
AT L =R ] SRRt (804) (40)
Provision for losses on loans to credit institutions at the end of the year .........ccccceeriiiiiiineirniiiiiiisienecinicines - 804

19. Loans to customers

Individuals Corporates Total
2013
(01 =Y o [ | SRRSO TR USPPPPTRRRRPIOt 18,205 19,669 37,874
CrEAIE CAIAS ..vveeieieeeecieeeceee e ettt e eeee e e ete e e etbe e e ebeeesbeeeetaeeeesbaeeasseeesseesassaeeesseeeessaeesseeessseesnsseesesreennns 11,296 878 12,174
IMIOIEZAEE IOANS ...ttt ettt s e e st e e bt e s bt e sab e s s be e bt e sbeeeabeeabeenbeesseeeaneenneens 258,065 8,103 266,168
Subordinated loans .. . - 531 531
[0 14 o 1T (oY= Y USSR 36,133 312,120 348,253
Lo VAT o] s e o I [o - [ TSP (13,208) (16,018) (29,226)
Lo =T T o Q0 ol 1) o 4 = 3 310,491 325,283 635,774
2012
(@I e [ | £ ST SSR RPN 17,236 18,470 35,706
Credit cards 10,302 769 11,071
Y[ a 7= Tl [0 T o RSP SPP 190,897 4,376 195,273
YU Yo e [T T 1 =Te [ Lo Y- Yo TSR - 573 573
Other loans ........... 43,560 340,208 383,768
Provision on loans (19,222) (40,559) (59,781)
o =T T o Q0 ol U1y T 4 1= 3N 242,773 323,837 566,610

The total book value of pledged loans that were pledged against amounts borrowed was ISK 173 billion at the end of the year
(31.12.2012: ISK 167 billion). Pledged loans comprised mortgage loans to individuals, loans to municipals and loans to state related

entities.

Further analysis of loans is provided in Risk Management Disclosures.
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19.

20.

Loans to customers, continued

Changes in the provision for losses on loans to customers

Specific  FXrulings Collective Total
2013
Balance at the beginning of the Year .........ccccviiieiee e 41,498 14,942 3,341 59,781
Provision for 10sses dUring the YEar ..........cccueieiiiieciiie et e e 6,041 1,952 947 8,940
Write-0ffs dUriNg the YEAI ...cc.vi ettt (24,228) (12,008) (188) (36,424)
Transferred to Iabilities ........c.ovueeiiiie e - (3,984) - (3,984)
Payment of loans previously Written off ...........ccoveviiiiiiniiccecsee s 914 - - 914
Balance at the end Of the YEar ... s e s s s e s e s e s e s e nnen 24,224 902 4,100 29,226
2012
Balance at the beginning of the Year ... 32,953 13,823 9,513 56,289
Provision for [05ses during the YEar ........ccccviviieiiciieseece et 11,818 5,744 (118) 17,444
Write-offs dUring the YEar ........oouiiiiiie ettt (3,830) - (6,054) (9,884)
Transferred to labilities ........c.ivveeceeiieccce e s - (4,625) - (4,625)
Payment of loans previously Written off ..o 557 - - 557
Balance at the end of the Year ........iciviiiieeiiiiiiiiinieeincneress e sessneeeees 41,498 14,942 3,341 59,781

The Bank made good progress in restructuring large loans to corporates which resulted in a write-off. Consequently the provision for
losses on those loans decreased in the Statement of Financial Position. The Bank settled a great part of the recalculated foreign
currency loans that had been provisioned for in prior years following court rulings that such loans were illegal. This resulted in a
decrease in the provision for FX rulings between years.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are impairment losses on loans and the valuation of foreign currency-linked loans.

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least quarterly as further described in Note 53. The specific component of
the total allowance for impairment applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on management's best
estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgements about a debtor's financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its merits, the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are independently reviewed by the
Credit Risk function.

For the foreign loan portfolio the Group estimates the impact of Court judgements that have dealt with the legality of foreign currency-
linked loans on the cash flows recoverable from the portfolios. The Group remains exposed to uncertainty regarding the foreign loan
portfolio arising from firstly, the Group’s interpretation of judgments made, and secondly, the outcome of future legal decisions and
new or amended government legislation. Management judgment is required in the determination of the loans that require
recalculation, and the estimated loss is based on assumptions that may be revised by future court decisions. In addition, the outcome
of future legal decisions and new or amended government legislation may require recalculation of other categories of foreign loan
portfolio that the Group has not previously considered vulnerable. This will be determined by future court rulings and government
actions, for which it is not currently possible to predict an outcome.

Financial instruments 2013 2012
BONdSs aNd debt INSTIUMENTS ....viiiiiii ittt e e et e e e baeeerabeeeatseeeetseeeesseeeeaseeesbeeessseesasseeennes 62,171 117,730
Shares and equity instruments with variable iNCOME .........cooiiiiiiiiiiii e 17,449 16,844
DerivatiVes .....ooooeeeiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e . 1,070 788
Securities used for hedging 5,851 2,438
FINANCIAl INSTIUMENLES ....ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneneeeeneenensesssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns 86,541 137,800
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21. Financial assets and financial liabilities

Designated

Amortised at fair
2013 cost Trading value Total
Loans
Cash and balances with Central Bank ..........cccooovieieiiee i 37,999 - - 37,999
Loans to Credit iINSTILULIONS ....viiccvieieiieeciee ettt e eebre e are e e eareeenreeennes 102,307 - - 102,307
LOANS £0 CUSTOMBIS .ttt et eeeebeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 635,774 - - 635,774
I o N 776,080 - - 776,080
Bonds and debt instruments
LISERA ettt ettt et et ettt et b e he et e b b a et e s he b e e st e benbeeteentebentean - 4,708 55,625 60,333
UNTISEEA ettt sttt e b et beeb et s be s b e et nreens - 49 1,789 1,838
Bonds and debt instruments .. - 4,757 57,414 62,171
Shares and equity instruments with variable income
LISTRA -ttt a et bbb h et a e bbbt b et et e nae s - 1,420 2,858 4,278
UNBISEEA 1.ttt ettt sttt b e s bt et e b s bt e bt e st e sbesbeensenbenteenes - 1,387 9,553 10,940
Bond funds With variable iNCOME ........cocviiiiiiiiiiee et e eres - 906 1,325 2,231
Shares and equity instruments with variable income .......cccoeeveveeeiieieeeiiereeeeeeeeeeeeenes - 3,713 13,736 17,449
Derivatives
OTC AEIVATIVES ..vveeeereeeitieeeetreeeeteeeeiteeeeiteeeeeteeeestteeeesseeeeseeeeseeesesseesesseeeessseesbeeeseseeennses - 1,070 - 1,070
Derivatives - 1,070 - 1,070
Securities used for hedging
Bonds and debt iNSTFUMENTS .......ooiruiiiiiirieeieteseee ettt - 490 - 490
Shares and equity instruments with variable income ...........cococeiiiininiininiiie, - 5,361 - 5,361
Securities used for hedging ......ccccccceiiiiirneriiiiiiiiinnreininceeeeeeessssnesese e sssssnnnasssens - 5,851 - 5,851
Other fINANCIAl @SSES ..iciuveiiiiie ittt ettt e b e e e eree e sabeeeeareesnnreeennnes 5,746 - - 5,746
FINANCIAl @SSELS ...uuveeeeeeenenennnrsrersrssssssssssnsnsnsssnssssssssssssnsnsssnssssssnssssssssssasasassssnsnn 781,826 15,391 71,150 868,367
Liabilities at amortised cost
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ..........cccvveeeveeeeireeeeiiee e 28,000 - - 28,000
Deposits ... . 471,866 - - 471,866
BOITOWINES .eeettieeiiiiiitee ettt ettt e e ettt e e e e ettt e e s s et e e e s s e abbb e e e e e ssanbbraeeeessannreeeeens 204,568 - - 204,568
Subordinated labilitIES ......cc.eieciie i 31,918 - - 31,918
Liabilities at amortised COSE ......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirirerererrrererrrererereeereereeeeeeeseeeeeeeseeesesenenenens 736,352 - - 736,352
Financial liabilities at fair value
Short POSItIoN IN DONAS ....ccuiiieiieeceecee e e rae e e aa e e e saaeeeanes - 8,199 - 8,199
Derivatives - 761 - 761
Financial liabilities at fair VAlUe ........ccccoeeieiiiiercrcccrrrcccccccccc s se s - 8,960 - 8,960
Other financial liabilities .... 36,747 - - 36,747
FINaNCial llabilities ....ccceeeeiiriiiiiiiiiiireiirerererererersrrre e eseereereeee e e e ee e e seseseseseseseseseeeeseeseennens 773,099 8,960 - 782,059
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21. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Designated

Amortised at fair
2012 cost Trading value Total
Loans
Cash and balances with Central Bank .........cccoocoiiieiieiciiic e 29,746 - - 29,746
Loans t0 Credit iNSTITUTIONS ..viiiiiiccieeeee et e e e e s e e e e e e e anaaaeeeeas 101,011 - - 101,011
LOANS £0 CUSTOMEBIS .ttt e et e et e e e e e e eeeeeeeaeees 566,610 - - 566,610
0 o N 697,367 - - 697,367
Bonds and debt instruments
| =T SRR - 2,132 42,441 44,573
UNTISEEA ettt e b et s be bbb bttt nbeens - 3,515 69,642 73,157
Bonds and debt instruments .. - 5,647 112,083 117,730
Shares and equity instruments with variable income
LISTRA -ttt h et h e bt ettt b et et nne s - 374 2,446 2,820
UNTBISEEA 1.ttt ettt sttt b e e bt et e b s bt ese et e sbe s bt entenbanbeenes - 1,037 8,682 9,719
Bond funds With variable INCOME ........cocviiiiiiiiciie ettt e enees - 2,623 1,682 4,305
Shares and equity instruments with variable income .......cccceeveveieiiieieieieieieneeeeeeeeenes - 4,034 12,810 16,844
Derivatives
OTC dEIIVATIVES ..eeuvieiiieiiieiieeee ettt st saa e s s re e srnesabeebe e e - 788 - 788
Derivatives - 788 - 788
Securities used for hedging
Bonds and debt iNSTIUMENTS ....c..ooirieiiiirieeiee ettt - 1,460 - 1,460
Shares and equity instruments with variable income ..........coccoeveeniinieieinicceeee - 978 - 978
Securities used for hedging ......ccccccieiiiiiriereiiiiiiiinnrene e ssssnesesssessssssnnnasssens - 2,438 - 2,438
Other fINANCIAl @SSELS ..iciviiiiiie ettt et ebre e e etae e e eabeeseareeenareeeennes 5,030 - - 5,030
FINANCIAl @SSELS ...uuvereeeeenenennercrersrsssresssssssssnsssnsssnssnssnnnsnsnsssssssssssssssnssasassssssssssssnsnn 702,397 12,907 124,893 840,197
Liabilities at amortised cost
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ..........cccveeevveeieieeeiiiee e 32,990 - - 32,990
Deposits ... . 448,683 - - 448,683
BOTTOWINES ..evteiieiiiiiitee ettt ettt e ettt e e e et e e e s e aa et e e s s e sabae e e e e s senbbeeeeesssnsnreeeeens 195,085 - - 195,085
Subordinated lADIlItIES ......ccueiieiie e e e 34,220 - - 34,220
Liabilities at amortised COSE ......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirirerererrrrrererreeeereeeeeereeeeeseseeesesesesesesenenenens 710,978 - - 710,978
Financial liabilities at fair value
Short POSItION IN DONAS ...cceiiiiiie ettt - 12,490 - 12,490
Derivatives - 975 - 975
Financial liabilities at fair VAlUE ........cccceceiriiiiirricrcccrccccccccccrcrcrcrcrcscscssse s e e sesesesesenenees - 13,465 - 13,465
Other financial liabilities . 35,141 - - 35,141
FINaNCial llabilities ....ccceeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiriiirererreerererrre e e e ee e se s e reeeseseeeseseeeesesesennees 746,119 13,465 - 759,584

Included in unlisted Bonds and debt instruments designated at fair value is the Dréomi bond, which the Group received when acquiring
deposits from SPRON hf. in March 2009 and was closed by contract at year end 2013.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2013 26 Amounts are in ISK millions




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

2013 2012
Bonds and debt instruments designated at fair value specified by issuer
Financial and INSUIANCE @CHIVITIES ......ccicuiiiiiiiie it eciee sttt et e et e e sre e e e e e e eabeeesbaeesbaeeesbeeeesbeeesnseeeansaeans 1,363 70,142
Public administration, human health and SOCial ACIVITIES ......c.eieeviiiiiiiecee ettt et e s 55,007 40,679
[Ofo T o] =) (T OO PP U PP PPPPRPUPRRORS 1,044 1,262
Bonds and debt instruments designated at fair ValUe ........cccccceeeiiiiiiiiineeiiiiicinnnnnenssencssnnneseessssssssnssssssssssssnnes 57,414 112,083

The total amount of pledged bonds at the end of the year was ISK 18.4 billion (31.12.2012: ISK 35.7 billion). Pledged bonds comprised
Icelandic Government Bonds that were pledged against funding received and included in Due to credit institutions and Central Bank as
well as short positions included in Financial liabilities at fair value.

Settlement of Drémi Bond

At the end of 2013 the Bank reached an agreement with Eignasafn Sedlabanka islands ehf. (ESi) on the settlement of a bond issued by
Drémi hf. in 2009, when deposits from SPRON were transferred to Arion Bank. The bond was secured with all Drémi's assets and also
with a hold harmless statement from the Ministry of Finance and Economic Affairs. The bond was due in June 2014 with a possible
extension to 2015. The agreement stated that the Bank would acquire loans to individuals held by Dromi hf., Frjalsi hf. (subsidiary of
Drémi hf.) and Hilda hf. (entity held by ESI). The Hilda loans transferred were previously owned by SPRON but pledged against liabilities
with the Central Bank.

The bond, with a book value of approximately ISK 70 billion, will be fully settled through this agreement and the settlement of the
potential value of business relationships attributable to the deposits transferred from SPRON in 2009. In respect of these transactions
and the former customers of SPRON and Frjalsi fjarfestingarbankinn that became the customers of Arion Bank when their loans are
transferred, business relationships worth ISK 1 billion were capitalized. The financial effect of this settlement was as follows:

2013
(o T T I o R ol U3 0 5 0= 3PP PRSP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPNY 49,977
FINANCIal INSTIUMENTS, DONGS .. ..ottt ettt e bt e sat e st e e bt e s bt e sabesabeeabe e b e esaaesabeeabeenbeesbenateenneans (69,020)
Intangible assets ... 1,000
(014 =T T =] OO OSSOSO SRR PURRRION 1,675
TOtal EFfECT ON ASSELS ciiiiiiineriiiiiiiicinetereiiisirrreeetessssssnesesesssessssnsassessssssnsnssssssssssssnssssssssssnsntasssssssssnnsesssssssssssnsasnssans (16,368)
[D7=T oo 1| £ U PO P PP P PP PUPPPPPION (15,374)
B I D 15 o1 =TSSR (234)
OTNEI HADIILIES ...eeneeeeeeeeieete ettt h e st e et e e bt e s bt e she e s st e e be e s bt e ss e e eabeeab e e bt eeabeeabeemseebeesabeeaseebeesaeesabeenbeennen 178
Total effect ON [ADIIITIES .occcceeeiiiiiiiiiieeneie e rsese e s s s e s s anseessssssssnsnsassesssssssnssessssssssssnsssnsssssssnnnsassessssssnns (15,430)
INterest iNCOME 0N DIOMI BONG ......ocuiiiiiiiieieiteet ettt h e h et et eh et et e e bt e bt e b e s bt e bt e ae et e sb e e bt et e besbeeaeebenbeenes 444
NEt IMPAITMENT ON TOANS ...ttt ettt e bt e st e e s a e e s ab e et e e bt e atesaeeease e st e saeesabeeaseenbeesaeesabeenbeenbeesbeesnbesnsennse (1,616)
TAX @XPEINSE .eeteiiieiiiitteeeeeitttteeeesatbtteeeeeaauttteeeeeaaaeteeeeseaasasaeeeeeaaasbba e e e e s e ab bt e e e e e e e an b bt e e e e e e n bt e e e e e e e e et eee e e e e anneeeeeeeanrneeeesseanhrneeeeeaas 234
Total effect 0N Net @arNiNGS ....cciiivviiiiiiiiiiiiiirii it essssssrs s s e s s s sssasse s s sessssssassssssssssssnsnsnsssssssssnsnensssssssssansenns (938)

The remaining balance of 1.7 billion will be settled in March 2014 as well as any possible correction of the transfer valuation.
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22. Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are market observable, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3: valuation techniques which include significant inputs that are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred

between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year.

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2013
Assets at fair value
Bonds and debt iNSTrUMENTS .....cccuviiiiiiieiiie e e e ree e 21,411 39,531 1,229 62,171
Shares and equity instruments with variable inCOME ........cccccveevieiiecececeeece e, 3,570 13,441 438 17,449
DIEIIVATIVES .eeieiiiiiiiiieee ettt e st e e e e e st e e e s s e bba e e e e e s esabbaeeeeessabbaaeeeeanans - 1,070 - 1,070
Securities Used for NEAZING ......ccvveiieieeietece e 4,495 1,355 - 5,850
Investment property ... - - 28,523 28,523
ASSEtS At faIr VAIUE .....cceeieiiiiiiiiiiicrccercrrrrrcsr e e sessssssssesesesesesesesesesesesssessesenesssasesssessnennens 29,476 55,397 30,190 115,063
Liabilities at fair value
Short position in bonds .. . 8,199 - - 8,199
DBIIVALIVES ...ttt ettt et s et et e s e s e r e e enne - 761 - 761
Liabilities at fair ValUe ......ccceeveeeieiiieiiiiiiiiecccececeseeecereeeceseeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeesesesssessssessssesssenes 8,199 761 - 8,960
2012
Assets at fair value
Bonds and debt iNSTrUMENTS .....cccuviiiiiiiciie et veeeenes 4,397 111,914 1,420 117,731
Shares and equity instruments with variable inCOMe ........cccccveevievieneececceeeee e 1,799 14,530 515 16,844
DBIIVALIVES ...ttt st s et e e st s s e s e e e e enne - 788 - 788
Securities Used for NEAZING .....cccveeiieiieieceee et 1,733 706 - 2,438
INVESEMENT PrOPEITY ..evviiieeiieiiiieee ettt e e srre e e e s s baa e e e e s s bbbaeeesssnasbees - - 28,919 28,919
ASSEtS At faIr VAU .....ccceieiiiiiiiiiircrircccsesrrcssscsessssesssess s s sesssesesesesesessssseesesessssnenesenenannens 7,929 127,937 30,854 166,720
Liabilities at fair value
Short POSIION IN DONTS ...ecviiiiecie e e te et e s aeeaeereensaeenes 12,490 - - 12,490
DBIIVALIVES ...ttt sttt e e st e s e s b e s e s neeenne - 975 - 975
Liabilities at fair VAlU@ ......ccceeveeeeiiiiiiiiiiieieecceeeeerereceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeesesesessessssssesssenes 12,490 975 - 13,465

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 in 2013 (2012: none).
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22. Fair value hierarchy, continued

The fair value of assets and liabilities is the amount at which the asset and liability could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, i.e. not during a forced sale or liquidation. The existence of published price quotations in an active market is the best
evidence of fair value and when they exist they are used by the Group to measure assets and liabilities. If quoted prices for a asset fail
to represent actual and regularly occurring transactions in active market transactions or if quoted prices are not available at all, fair
value is established by using an appropriate valuation technique.

Methods for establishing fair value

Level 1: Fair value established from quoted market prices

The best evidence of the fair value of a asset and liability at initial recognition is the transaction price, unless the fair value can be
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions, or is based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets.

In some cases, the carrying value of a asset in Note 21 is used as an approximation for the fair value of the asset. This is straight
forward for cash and cash equivalents but is also used for short term investments and borrowings to highly rated counterparties, such
as credit institutions, on contracts that feature interest close to or equal to market rates and expose the Group to little or no credit risk.

For listed and liquid stocks and bonds, certain financial derivatives and other market traded securities, the fair value is derived directly
from the market prices. These instruments are disclosed under Financial instruments and Financial liabilities at fair value in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Level 2: Fair value established using valuation techniques with observable market information

For assets and liabilities, for which the market is not active, the Group applies specific working procedures and valuation techniques to
attain a fair value using as much market information as available. Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length market
transactions between knowledgeable and willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models or other commonly accepted valuation techniques used by
market participants to price the instrument.

For assets and liabilities for which quoted prices on active markets are not available, the fair value is derived using various valuation
techniques. This applies in particular to OTC derivatives such as options, swaps, futures and unlisted equities but also some other
assets and liabilities.

In most cases the valuation is based on theoretical financial models, such as the Black Scholes model or variations thereof. These
techniques also include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations.

The fair value for deposits with stated maturities is calculated by discounting estimated cash flows using current market rates for
similar maturities. For deposits that can be withdrawn immediately, the fair value is the amount payable on demand, which is equal to
the carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position.

Level 3: Fair value established using valuation techniques with significant unobservable market information

In many cases there is little or no market data to rely on for fair value calculations. The most common valuation technique is present
value calculations. Such calculations involve the estimation of future cash flow and the assessment of appropriate discount rate. The
discount rate should both reflect current market rates and the uncertainty in the future cash flow. In such cases internal models and
methods are used to calculate the fair value. The models may be statistical in nature, based on internal or external history of assets
with similar characteristics and/or based on internal knowledge and experience. For example, the credit margin on most loans to
customers which, is added to the current and suitable interest rate to arrive at an appropriate discount rate, is estimated using credit
rating and loss parameters in case of default that have been derived from internal models.

Equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price are evaluated using methods and guidelines from pertinent international
organisations. In most cases intrinsic value is the basis for the assessment but other factors, such as cash flow analysis, can also modify
the results.

When determining the fair value of rental earning investment property net present value of future cash flow is calculated. When
determining the cash flow, general accepted valuation techniques are applied, such as international valuation standard, IVS no. 1
Market Value Basis of Valuation. Vast majority of the rental earning investment properties are valued based on aforementioned
valuation technique but when preconditions are not available the Group uses management valuation.

The Group applies management valuation for determining fair value of investment properties under construction at the end of the
year. Management valuation is based on recent transactions and offers for similar assets.
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22. Fair value hierarchy, continued

The level of the fair value hierarchy of assets is determined at the end of each reporting year.

Movements in Level 3 assets measured at fair value Investment property Financial assets Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Balance at the beginning of the year .........ccccccevvvevveeceeneenns 28,919 27,100 1,935 2,021 30,854 29,121
Fair value adjustments ... . 1,219 1,584 231 191 1,450 1,775
AItIONS .ottt 1,804 3,729 - 105 1,804 3,834
DiSPOSAI 1.ttt (3,419) (3,494) (407) (391) (3,826) (3,885)
Transfers into Level 3 ......cooiiiiriiiinieeeeeeecceeeeeee - - - 9 - 9
Transfers out of Level 3 . - - (92) - (92) -
Balance at the end of the year .......cccceevveiiieeeeiiiiicicrcnnnennnens 28,523 28,919 1,667 1,935 30,190 30,854

Within line items in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income where gain (loss) related to fair value measurements in

Level 3 is recognised

2013 2012
NET INTEIEST INCOMIE .. et b et e s bt e e sba e e s snn e e s e neeesnaeesnnee s 82 151
Net financial income ... 149 40
Other OPEratiNG INCOME ..cocuviiiiiiieiieeieee ettt e ettt et e s te et e e seestaesaeesseesbeesaeessseesseesaeessseessaesseesseesnseensesnseansenane 1,219 1,584
Gain (loss) recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive IncOme ........ccccceeeeerecccrrneeeeenenennnnne 1,450 1,775
Significant unobservable inputs to valuation in Level 3
Valuation
technique Significant unobservable inputs Range  Sensitivity of the input to fair value
Rental earning investment DCF +/-0.5% change in WACC would
ProPErties .......ccceveeeveverererrereeinena method  Weighted average cost of capital ~ 4.4-6.3% result in increase / decrease in FV
by I1SK 2,072 / 1SK1,735 million.
Investment properties under Management
CONSErUCEION ...eeviiieiiieeeiieeceeee Valuation Years in NPV calculations 1/2-4yrs + /- 1 year change would result

in increase / decrease in FV

by ISK 439 / ISK 493 million.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

As the fair value measurement of Level 3 assets is based on valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs there is
uncertainty about the actual fair value of the assets.
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22. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

2013 Carrying Fair Unrealised
Financial assets not carried at fair value value value  gain (loss)
Cash and balances With Central BANK ...........cocviiiiiiieiiiie e e e e e e ebeeesebeeeserreeeenns 37,999 37,999 -
Loans 10 Credit INSTILULIONS ......iicvieiciie ettt et s e e e e e e s saa e e eaae e e nbeeesaneeeeareeesanees 102,307 102,307 -
LOGNS L0 CUSTOMELS ..eiiiuiveieieeeceireeceiee e ettt e eeteeeeeteeeeette e e eateeesabaeeesseeeeabeeeasbeeeansaeeesaeessseesasseesenseeesnrees 635,774 626,825 (8,949)
Other fINANCIAT @SSELS ..icuiiiciiie ettt ettt e et e e s be e e s taeeeeabeeessaeeeaseessseeensseeesnresenrees 5,746 5,746 -
Financial assets not carried at fair Value .........cceeveeeeieiiiiiiiieieieieeeeeceeeceseeeceseee e eeeeseeeeeesesesesesssssenes 781,826 772,877 (8,949)
Financial liabilities not carried at fair value

Due to credit institutions and Central Dank ........cc.ooooviiiiiiieiciee e 28,000 28,000 -
DIBPOSIES +euveeueerutteieestee ettt ettt et e sh e ettt e bt e st e e bt e bt e e h e e sa s e e bt e bt e eh e e e h b e e R bt e bt e ehbeeabeebe e bt e enbeenbeebeeaeas 471,866 472,063 (197)
BOTTOWINES ..veetieiiiiiiitee ettt ettt e et e e e ettt e e s s e et e e e s s easbbb e e e e e s asbbeeeeeesansbbeeeeesannebeeesenannnnees 204,568 196,981 7,587
0] o oY e [T F= 1 =T I (o Y=Y SRS SRUUURUPRRNY 31,918 31,918 -
Other fiNaNCial lADIlITIES ...cccvveeieivieeciee ettt e et ebe e e e ebae e e eaaeeeeabeeeenreeennreeas 36,747 36,747 -
Financial liabilities not carried at fair value ...........ooovmereeeeeee 773,099 765,709 7,390
Net unrealised gain (loss) not recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income .........cccccveecerrrcnnneneee (1,559)
2012

Financial assets not carried at fair value

Cash and balances With Central BANK .......c...oovveiiiiiieiiiie e e et ere e sbreesebaeeserreeenes 29,746 29,746 -
Loans t0 Credit INSTILULIONS ......iiiiieicieeccee ettt et e e et e e et e e e sate e e areeesaseeeearaeesanees 101,011 101,011 -
LOGNS L0 CUSTOMELS ..eiiiuvveeeirieceiteeceteeeeiteeeeetreeeetteeeetteeeeabeeesabaeeesbeeeasbeseasseeeanseeeesaeesasseesasseesenseeessrees 566,610 555,468 (11,142)
Other fINANCIAT @SSELS ..icuiiiiiiie ettt et e e e e et e e st ae e e saaeessaaeeesseeeenseeensseeesareeenreen 5,030 5,030 -
Financial assets not carried at fair Value .........ccevevieeieiiiiiiiiiieniieeeeeeeceseseeeceseeesese e seseseeessesesesssssenes 702,397 691,255 (11,142)
Financial liabilities not carried at fair value

Due to credit institutions and Central bank ... . 32,990 32,990 -
[DL=T oo 11 £ PP PP PP U PPPPPPPOPRTTOPRY 448,683 449,047 (364)
BOITOWINES .veeveieiiieieeiteesiteeteesteestte st teete e st e s seeeateesse e seesseesaseenseesseeasseesseesseesssassseanseanssanseeanseenseanseannen 195,085 195,562 (478)
¥ oY o [Ta =1 €=Te I o T=Y s K RO TR OO RRRN 34,220 34,220 -
Other financial liabilities 35,141 35,141 -
Financial liabilities not carried at fair value .........cccceeviiiiieriiiiiiiiniennincerr e e 746,119 746,960 (842)
Net unrealised gain (loss) not recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income .........cccceeeececvcnneenennns (11,984)

Financial assets and financial liabilities predominantly bear interest at floating rates. For assets and liabilities not at floating rates fair
value is determined by Level 2 methods for which the valuation input is market observable interest rates.
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22. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Derivatives Fair value
Assets  Liabilities

2013

Forward exchange rate agreements, UNIISTE ..........cceeviiriiiiiiiiiiiiiece et 68 20
Interest rate and exchange rate agreements, UNTISTEA ......ccvecveeciieiienee e e e e 518 42
Bond swap agreements, unlisted 4 54
Share swap agreements, unlisted 33 632
Options - purchased agreements, UNTISEEA .........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiieie e 447 13
DIEIIVALIVES cevueiieriieneneiieeiiieianieeeteteennsieeeeetennssesesesessnssssessrensssssssssssnnnsssssessssnsssssssssssnssssssssessnssssssssssnnnnsnns 1,070 761
2012

Forward exchange rate agreements, UNHSTEA ........coiiiiiiiiiii i e et e s e e e s neeesnaeesnnes 250 92
Interest rate and exchange rate agreements, unlisted 71 792
Bond swap agreemeNts, UNISTEA ........iivuiiiiiiieiiiee e ee e see st e s e s raa e e e saae e e sbe e e sabaeesnbaeesnsseeensseeennseeennseean 17 42
Share swap agreements, UNNSTEA ........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiei ettt s 16 49
Options - purchased agreements, UNTISTEA ........uecvieiiiiieiiece et e st sre e s re e s e e e aeeseeessaesnaeeneeenes 434 -
[T T 1= 788 975
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23. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements

Assets subject to netting

Netting potential not
recognized in the balance

arrangements sheet
Gross assets Balance Assets not Total
before sheet Assets Assets after subject to assets re-
balance nettings recognised consideration enforceable cognised on
sheet with gross on balance Financial Collateral of netting  netting arr- balance
2013 nettings liabilities  sheet, net liabilities received potential angements sheet
Reverse repurchase agreements ....... 10,381 - 10,381 (8,199) - 2,182 - 10,381
Derivatives .....ccccccvveiiiiiiiiniicceee 389 - 389 (22) - 367 681 1,070
Other assets netted by deposits ........ 17,049  (15,374) 1,675 - - 1,675 - 1,675
Total assets ......cccccerrerueeririnerisineenen. 27,819 (15,374) 12,445 (8,221) - 4,224 681 13,126
2012
Reverse repurchase agreements ....... 13,095 - 13,095 (12,350) - 745 - 13,095
Derivatives ......cceecveeereeceeereereecreenns 170 - 170 (8) - 162 618 788
Total assets .. 13,265 - 13,265 (12,358) - 907 618 13,883
Financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements
Netting potential not
Liabilities subject to netting recognized in the balance
arrangements sheet
Gross Balance Liabilities Liabilities not Total
liabilities sheet Liabilities after subject to liabilities
before nettings recognised consideration enforceable recognised
balance sheet  with gross on balance Financial Collateral of netting nettingarr-  on balance
2013 nettings assets  sheet, net assets pledged potential angements sheet
Repurchase agreements ..........cccueeuee 8,199 - 8,199 (8,199) - - - 8,199
DerivatiVes .....cccceevveereereesieseecieenns 39 - 39 (22) - 17 722 761
Deposits netted against other assets 15,374  (15,374) - - - - - -
Total liabilities ........ccceevceereiineriiinnens 23,612 (15,374) 8,238 (8,221) - 17 722 8,960
2012
Repurchase agreements ..........c......... 12,350 - 12,350 (12,350) - - - 12,350
Derivatives .......ccceeevevinenieiicnienene 806 - 806 (8) - 798 169 975
Total liabilities ........ccceevceerervueriiinnens 13,156 - 13,156 (12,358) - 798 169 13,325

Accounting policies for offsetting are provided in Note 53.
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24. Investments in associates

2013 2012
The Group's interest in its principal associates
Audkenni hf., Borgartin 31, 105 Reykjavik, ICeIaNd ........cccocciririiiiiiiiiiicicicteicceee e 20.0% 20.0%
Bakkavor Group Ltd., West Marsh Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, United Kingdom .........c.cccoevvevivecieeveeneesiee e 45.8% 30.1%
Farice ehf., Smaratorg 3, 201 KOPaVOGUF, ICEIANG ........ooiiriiiiiiiieieeecte ettt s s 39.3% 43.5%
GO fjarfesting ehf., Undirheimar, 845 Fludir, Iceland .. 30.0% 30.0%
Klakki ehf., Armuli 3, 108 ReyKjavik, ICIANG ........oeviveeceeeeeeececeeeteee et seee e s s se s s saesesessaseesssesaranaas 31.8% 36.3%
Reiknistofa bankanna hf., Kalkofnsvegur 1, 150 Reykjavik, [CEIaNd ........ccevveeeieiieeiiecieceeeece e 21.7% 23.3%
Reitir fasteignafélag hf., Kringlan 4-12, 103 Reykjavik, 1CEIaNG .......cccooiiriiiriiiiiiiieneeeeeeeee e 42.7% 42.7%
Sementsverksmidjan ehf., Manabraut 20, 300 Akranes, Iceland ... 23.6% 23.6%
Skipti hf., Armula 25, 108 Reykjavik, ICEIaNG ..........ccccviueviveiiieiiieieieiceses st ns s s 38.3% -
SMI ehf., Smaratorg 3, 200 KOPaVOGUT, ICEIANG ......ccueiiiieieeieceeeee et ee et e s e s aeeteeseeesnaeeteeneansaennns - 39.1%
Investments in associates
Carrying amount at the beginning Of TNE YA ......ccuieiieieeece ettt e e e s reeenneens 7,050 2,987
Additions 8,903 1,658
Dividend (10) -
Share of profit (loss) of associates and reversal of IMPAIrMENT .........cccociiieiiiniiiiiee e 1,986 2,405
INVESTMENT iN ASSOCIATES ..ciieveeeiiiiiiienneiiieiiitineiieeietenneieeeteennsssseessassnsssssssessnsnsssssssssnssssssssssnsnsssssssssnsnsssssssssnne 17,929 7,050

On 30 April 2013 creditors of Skipti hf. reached an agreement on financial restructuring of Skipti hf. Arion bank hf., the largest creditor,
converted claims to shares and holds 38.3% share in Skipti hf.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates* 2013 2012
Lo = |- Y] £ TSR 457,202 560,268
TOTAI IADIITIES ..ottt ettt a et s bt e a et s bt s bt e st et e s be e bt e st e nbeebeeseebeneene (316,762) (446,287)
Net assets 140,441 113,981
TOtal FEVENUE OF @SSOCIATES ....uuvvieieiieciiieeee ettt e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e e etbb e e e e eeesabaaeeeeesaassaeeeeeeasssseeeeeenssaeeeeeeensrsneeens 263,365 396,201
NEt @arNiNGS Of ASSOCIATES ...euviiiieiiieiieriecteeieeree st e et ee et e st e s be e te e s teesseeesteesseeseesaessseenseesseesseesasessseeseesseesseeas 9,595 (11,200)

This value is based on book value of net assets in each company and does not reflect the Bank's view of its value.

*These information were not audited or reviewed by the Bank's auditor.

25. Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise three categories: Infrastructure, Customer Relationship and Related Agreements and Software.
Infrastructure and Customer Relationship and Related Agreements originate as a premium in connection with the acquisition of
business activities in subsidiaries, while Software originates from the acquisition of software licenses and the introduction of the
software into the Group’s operations.

Infrastructure, which is capitalized as an intangible asset, is connected to two business segments at the Bank, namely Asset
Management within the Bank and within the Bank's subsidiary Stefnir hf. and Credit card operation at the Bank’s subsidiary Valitor
Holding hf. In both cases the business activity is based on years of building up expertise and systems, during which a valuable platform
has been created for future growth. An impairment test is performed annually as is described below.

Customer Relationship and Related Agreements are connected to business relationships and agreements which the Bank acquired in
subsidiaries bought in 2008-2009. The asset is based on the assumption that business relationships and agreements generate regular
payments and earnings to the relevant business segments. The business activities in question are those of the subsidiaries Okkar
liftryggingar, Ekort and Tekjuvernd. Every year existing agreements are examined and compared with agreements which were valid at
the time of acquisition. Impairment is made if agreements are closed and recognized impairment in 2013 was ISK 0.5 million (2012: nil).
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25.

Intangible assets, continued

At the end of 2013 an agreement was reached to settle the bond issued by Drémi hf. in 2009, when deposits from SPRON were
transferred to Arion Bank. Included in this agreement was the settlement of any potential value of business relationships attributable
to the deposits transferred from SPRON in 2009 and the loans transferred to Arion Bank as a payment for the bond. The Bank valued
the business relationships at ISK 1 billion and will amortize this asset over a period of 5-7 years.

Software is acquired computer software licenses and is capitalized on the basis of the cost of acquiring them and bringing them into
service. Computer software licenses recognized as intangible assets are amortized over their useful life, which is estimated to be 3 - 5
vears.

Customer

relationship

Infra- and related
2013 structure agreements Software Total
Balance at the beginning of the Year ... 3,914 144 883 4,941
AGAITIONS ettt ettt ettt sttt e h et be e - 1,000 841 1,841
IMP@IIMIENT 1.ttt et sttt et sttt et e b e st e et e besbeestenbe st e sseensansasseensansanes (839) - - (839)
AMOTTISATION .ttt b ettt b et e b et e bt et e e eae e e enes - - (560) (560)
INTANGIDIE ASSELS ..ccrireeriiiiiiiienetite e sre e e ens s e s s sessssannaeesess s sannaaaaees 3,075 1,144 1,164 5,383

2012

Balance at the beginning of the Year .........ccccveviecee e 3,886 144 735 4,765
Additions 28 - 685 713
A 44T ) = T ISP - - (537) (537)
INtangible aSSets ...ccccvvveiiiiiiiiiiiiriiinnr s 3,914 144 883 4,941

Impairment testing
The methodology for impairment testing on the Infrastructure which is part of intangible assets is based on discounted cash flow model
which uses inputs that consider features of the business and the environment.

The model used, to determine the recoverable amount, is most sensitive to changes in the forecast earnings available to shareholders
over a five-year period, the cost of equity and to changes in the growth rate. As a result of this analysis impairment was recognized for
Credit card operation in 2013 ISK 839 million (2012: nil).

Discount and growth rates

Asset Management OPeration .......c.ccoceiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Credit Card OPEratioN .....cccicci ettt ae e aeeneas

26. Tax assets and tax liabilities

CUITENT TX 1rttttieeiiiiiiee e e eiietee e e e ettt e e s s ettt e e e e st bt e e e e s ssasbbeeeeeeannbteeeeeeaansnneeessesnnnaneesanns
DT = g Yo N - D R STPPSRRRPRPRRE
Tax assets and tax [iabilities .......ccccceeiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiirre e seee s sssessssnseenes

Deferred tax assets and tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities ........ccccevvrveeirieeesiien e,
Investment property and property and equipment .........ccoceveevienenerienieseeee e
FINANCIAL @SSETS ...utitiiieiieteeieete ettt ettt bttt e st e st et e nsesbeeaeenee s
Other assets and lIaDIlILIES .......cocueiriiriinie e
Deferred tax related to foreign eXxchange gain ........ccccvevvevieiciecieeceesee e
Tax 10SS CArry fOrWard .........ooeeieiiiiiiiicicsie e

Set-off of deferred tax assets together with tax liabilities of the same taxable entities
Deferred tax assets and tax liabilities ........cccceeiiiiiiiieriiiiiiniiiieriinen e
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2013 2012
Discount Growth Discount Growth
rates rates rates rates
13.1% 2.5% 12.4% 2.5%
15.1% 4-10% 13.9% 4.3%

2013 2012
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
- 3,698 17 1,899
818 1,226 446 1,338
818 4,924 463 3,237
25 (212) - (694)
144 (1,770) - (215)
580 - 11 (1,343)
514 (90) 550 (47)
79 - 168 (81)
322 - 759 -
1,664 (2,072) 1,488 (2,380)
(846) 846 (1,042) 1,042
818 (1,226) 446 (1,338)

Amounts are in ISK millions
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26. Tax assets and tax liabilities, continued

Subsidiaries own tax loss carry forward with asset value of the amount of ISK 728 million (31.12.2012: ISK 1,371 million) that is not
recognised in the Financial Statements, due to uncertainty about the utilisation possibilities of the loss.

Recognised
Changes in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities in profit
2013 At 1Jan. orloss At 31 Dec.
Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities .........cccceeveereeiiieieccee e (248) 61 (187)
Investment property and property and qUIPMENT ........cccueiiierirniiiieeee et (1,275) (351) (1,626)
FINGNCIAT @SSELS ...ttt b ettt b e st et e st e e ae e b et e sae et e b e sbe e st e s e s bt eaeennes 565 15 580
Other assets and liabilities . 11 413 424
Deferred foreign exchange differenCeS .......uvcviecieiieiie e (696) 775 79
TaX 10SS CAITY FOTWAIT ...eeeuiieiieeiieee ettt sttt be e sat e st e e be e beesatesabeenbeenbeens 751 (429) 322
Change in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities ........c.ccevvvveerrieiiirnennennnnan. (892) 484 (408)
2012
Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities ........ccccceeveeriieivieeiienee e (222) (26) (248)
Investment property and property and qUIPMENT ........ccceiiierieriiiiieeee et (529) (746) (1,275)
T Lol | B Ty =T TR 611 (46) 565
Other assets and lADIILIES .......couiiiiiieie ettt et s e (42) 53 11
Deferred foreign exchange differenCeS ........vcviecieiiecie et (897) 201 (696)
TaX 10SS CAITY FOrWAId .....coviiiiiiiiiiieie et enes 660 91 751
Change in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities ........ccccevvveerriiiiirinnnennna. (419) (473) (892)
27. Other assets

2013 2012
Non-current assets and disposal groups held fOr SAle ........uiiiiiieiiiiece e 10,046 11,923
Property @nd EQUIPIMENT .......iiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt sb e e st e et e et e e sbtesateeabe e bt esaeesabeenseensaesabesaseenbeesanesanean 6,943 6,311
ACCOUNTS FECEIVADIE «.vviieveeeeieee ettt ettt e et e et e e et e e e ebee e e tbeeeeabeeeassaeeeaseeeesseeessseessseeeesaeeesabeeesateeennseeas 4,610 4,084
PrEP@iT EXPENSES ...uviiiieiteetietteitte et et et e e st e st e sa b e e bt e sbeesbt e e s beeabe e bt e h b e e ate et e e bt e ehae st e e bt e bt e nht e et e e beeeheeshteeabeereente 690 687
ACCTUET INCOIME ...ttt ettt h et b e bt h ettt b e e s et e e bt eae et e bt eh e et e bt eheea b e bt ehe e s s e b e sbeebeensenbeebeeneennenbenns 619 456
Unsettled SeCUrities trating .......cccviiiiiiiiicie bbb 255 125
SUNAIY @SSELS vuuvieureeteeseeeiteesteeseesteeseesseesseesssessseesseesseessseasseenseesssessssassesnseessessssessseessesssesssssesseessessseessseensesssessseens 413 549

Other assets .. 23,576 24,135
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27. Other assets, continued

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale 2013 2012
LEGAI ENEITIES ..ottt b e b s benr e ebe s ne s 300 1,733
AASSOCIATES ..vvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiitiie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e et e e et et et aetaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaatataaaatataateateteeeetetteeteeeeteeaaaaaeaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaans 5,457 6,384
REAI ESTATES .. uviiiiiiieciee ettt ect e ettt e e et e e e e te e e e tae e e abeeeaaeeeaaseeeaaseeeasbaeeeabeee e baeeesbeeetbeeeanteeeanteeeansaeaasaeeenreeeannen 4,150 3,275
OLNEE @SSEES ...ttt ettt b e bbbt e a et e bt e bt st b e bt a e e bt bt h e e e e bt h et et ehe et e b e nhe et entes 139 531

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale .. 10,046 11,923

The legal entities are subsidiaries that were acquired exclusively with view to resale and are classified as disposal groups held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5.

The main associate classified as disposal groups held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 is HB Grandi hf. (31% share).

Real estates and other assets classified as non-current assets are generally the result of foreclosures on companies and individuals.

2013 2012
Liabilities associated with the legal entities held for Sale .........ooioiiiiiiiiiiii e 567 1,769

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Associates acquired exclusively with view to resale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell. For
the most part, fair value at the date of classification of these legal entities was calculated using valuation models based on discounted
future cash flows that incorporated significant non-market observable inputs and assumptions. The use of reasonably possible
alternative inputs and assumptions to these models, in particular changes to the discount rate employed (representing the required
rate of return on equity), could have impact on the fair value of these disposal groups.

Real estates acquired exclusively with view to resale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell. Fair
value at the date of classification is based on independent property valuers or management valuation. As the fair value measurement
of real estates is based on valuation techniques there is uncertainty about the actual fair value of the assets.

Property and equipment Real Equip- Total Total

estate ment 2013 2012
Gross carrying amount at the beginning of the year ... 5,104 4,013 9,117 8,197
Yo [ [T L USROS 1,104 1,077 2,181 961
Disp0osals ...c.eevvvevrieiieere e, . (189) (39) (228) (41)
Transfers to iNVESTMENT PrOPEITY ....cccviereeriieeiieieeseeseeeteesteeseeeteeteeseeessaesseenseenaeennns (166) - (166) -
Gross carrying amount at the end of the Year ........ccccevveeveevie e, 5,853 5,051 10,904 9,117
Accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the year .........cccoevvivieienceccecceeees (654) (2,152) (2,806) (1,926)
DEPIECIALION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et esb e e st e et e et e e sae e st e et e e nbeenaeenaee (389) (839) (1,228) (899)
(D1 oo 1Y | TSP 24 28 52 19
Transfers to INVEStMENT PrOPEITY ....ceccvieiiiiee ettt e e eree e e e ae e e eaaee s 21 - 21 -
Accumulated depreciation at the end of the year .......c.cccceeveeveecceccecceeceeceeeeee (998) (2,963) (3,961) (2,806)
Property and @qUIPMENT .......ceeeeiiiiiiiiineieiiiiinsrsnseseississssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsasssssssnns 4,855 2,088 6,943 6,311

The official real estate value (Registers Iceland) amounts to ISK 5,025 million at the end of the year (2012: ISK 4,954 million) and the
insurance value amounts to ISK 9,466 million (2012: ISK 9,633 million).
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28. Other liabilities

2013 2012
Yol ole U o £ o T 1Y o SRS SSSNt 19,264 19,318
Provision for settled FX loans .. 4,524 4,625
UNSettled SECUNITIES TraTiNG .....ccviiciieierie ettt et e et e e steesteessae e s e esse e seesseeeaseenseesseesasessseenseesseesseans 144 842
Depositors’ and investors' SUArantee fUNG .........coceiiiiiiiiieeee ettt ettt e b e 2,886 2,919
INSUTANCE CLAIM 1oeiiiiiectee ettt e et et e e et e e etaeeeetaeeeetbeeesabaeesabaeeeebsseessseeeassaseaasseeansseessseeensseeennseeesnseeesans 2,266 2,138
Withholding tax . 1,552 1,926
Non-current liabilities and disposal groups held for Sale ..........ccuieiiiiierece e 567 1,769
BANK TBVY .ttt ettt st et h e sh et e a bt e bt e bt e bt e e h bt e bt et e e eateete e bt e bt e sateebeebeenaes 2,835 357
8T T VA 1= o1 =TSP 9,629 8,223

Other liabilities 43,667 42,117

29. Borrowings

Maturity

Issued Maturity type Currency Terms of interest 2013 2012
Covered bond .......cccccveveeiieeccieeen, 2013 2019 At maturity ISK Fixed, CPI linked, 2.50% 4,453 -
Covered bond .... 2012 2015 At maturity ISK Fixed, 6.50% 4,378 2,540
Covered bond .......cccccvvveeiieecciieeen, 2012 2034 Amortizing ISK Fixed, CPI linked, 3.60% 2,603 2,592
Covered bond .....ccceeevvevvveveieeiiiininnns 2008 2045 Amortizing ISK Fixed, CPI linked, 4.00% 21,361 20,922
Covered bond .......cccccvveviveecciieeen, 2008 2031 Amortizing ISK Fixed, CPI linked, 4.00% 4,934 4,948
Covered bond .... 2006 2048 Amortizing ISK Fixed, CPI linked, 3.75% 77,894 76,169
Covered bond .......cccccvvveeiieeeciieeen, 2005 2033 Amortizing ISK Fixed, CPI linked, 3.75% 17,873 17,819
COVEIEU DONMS .....eeeeeeeeieirrrrririerrrrrrrrrrssrsrsssesessses e s e s s s s s s s s s e sssssssssseseseseseseseseseseseseseseseseseneneneneneneneneneeennnananens 133,497 124,991
Senior unsecured bond 2013 2016 At maturity NOK  Floating, NIBOR + 5.00% 9,356 -
Senior unsecured bond 2010 2018 Amortizing ISK Floating, REIBOR + 1.00% 2,662 3,192
Senior unsecured bond ...........cc....... 2009 2018 Amortizing EUR Floating, EURIBOR + 1.00% 2,202 2,815
Secured bond, Landfestar ................. 2010 2044 Amortizing ISK Fixed, CPI linked, 4.70% 2,932 2,902
[T e IR VLT [N 17,152 8,909
Central Bank, secured .......cccccevveenneen 2010 2022  Atmaturity  Various Floating, LIBOR + 3.00% 52,998 60,056
[0 31T OO OO SO RPURURR 922 1,129
(0343 =Tl o T= T L3RRS 53,920 61,185
BOITOWINES ceevuuiiiiiiiiinniiiiiiiitenesiiiiiiieensssisieieessssssitreensssssssteeesssssssstsesssssssssssssssssssssssenssssssstsssnssssssssssnsssssssssssnnns 204,568 195,085

Book value of listed bonds was ISK 23,770 million (31.12.2012: ISK 8,034 million) at the end of the year. Market value of those bonds
was ISK 24,472 million (31.12.2012: ISK 8,512 million).

The Group did not repurchase any own debts in 2013 (2012: nil).

30. Subordinated liabilities

Maturity 2013 2012

Issued Maturity type Currency Terms of interest
Tier Il capital ...cocceeveenienieiienieeieee 2010 2020 At maturity Various  Floating, LIBOR + 4.00%* 31,918 34,220
SUDOrdiNated lIADIlItiEs .....eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenreeeenmmenrmsesnsnsssmrsrsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssnssnnnne 31,918 34,220

* In 2015 and thereafter 3 month EURIBOR/LIBOR +500 basis points.
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31. Pledged assets

Pledged assets against liabilities 2013 2012
Assets which have been pledged as collateral against borrowings .........c.ccoceveririeiinineiciceeeie 258,762 248,864
Assets which have been pledged as collateral against loans from credit institutions and short positions ............ 18,440 35,701
Pledged assets against llabilities .......cccceeiiiiiiiiimriiiiiiiiiir s s 277,202 284,565

The Group has pledged assets against borrowings, both issued covered bonds and other issued bonds and loan agreements. The total
value of those pledged assets was ISK 259 billion at the end of the year (31.12.2012: ISK 249 billion). Those assets were mainly pool of
mortgage loans to individuals, loans to municipals and loans to state related entities. The book value of those borrowings was ISK 189
billion at the end of the year (31.12.2012: ISK 188 billion).

Assets are primarily pledged against borrowings associated with the acquisition of the pledged assets. Two major events are most
significant. Assets were acquired from the Central Bank of Iceland in conjunction with the recapitalization of Arion Bank on 8 January
2010 and a portfolio of mortgages was acquired from Kaupthing hf. and is pledged against a structured covered bond that Arion Bank
took over as issuer of from Kaupthing hf. at the end of 2011.

The Group has pledged bonds against short term lending from the Central Bank of Iceland and against short positions, related to swap
agreements, to hedge market risk of those assets.

32. Equity

Share capital and share premium

According to the Bank's Articles of Association, total share capital amounts to ISK 2,000 million, with par value of ISK 1 per share. The
holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as approved by the general meeting and are entitled to one vote per share
at Shareholders' meetings.

Number Number
(million) 2013 (million) 2012
[ ULTe I 4 F= T or: o] - | SRS 2,000 75,861 2,000 75,861
2,000 75,861 2,000 75,861

Share premium represents excess of payment above nominal value that Shareholders have paid for shares issued by Arion banki hf.

Other reserves 2013 2012
R 10 o YA L=TY =T VOO PSR PPRP PP 1,637 1,637
FOreign CUrreNCY tranSIation MESEIVE ......ccvicieecieeiteeieerie et et e seeseestteesbeesteesaaessseesseeseeseeaseeenseenseasseesssesseensensans - 2

Other reserves ........cccceeeeeeeeerererereenens 1,637 1,639
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OFF BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

33.

34.

35.

36.

Obligations 2013 2012

Guarantees, unused overdraft and loan commitments the Group has granted its customers
GUATANTEES .uuuuuuuutuiuuuuuuuuttueeeeteaeeaaeeaeasaeeaeeesaeaeaeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeteeeaee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e et eeaeeeaaaeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeneanes 9,922 9,185

Unused overdrafts 37,371 34,545
48,585 36,001

Loan commitments

Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee fund

The Icelandic parliament has discussed a bill on a new Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund, without conclusion of the matter.
Due to uncertainty of the shape of future legislation the liability brought forward from previous years is not changed from the balance
of ISK 2,669 million. The Group has granted the Fund a guarantee for obligations amounting to ISK 3,210 million.

Operating lease commitments

Group as a lessee

The Group has concluded lease agreements regarding some of the real estate it uses for its operations. These lease agreements are for
a period of up to 22 years. The majority of the contracts include renewal options for various periods of time.

2013 2012
[ o [0 I e o TS | OSSPSR 272 339
OVEN 1 YEAr AN UP T0 5 YEAIS 1eieeiieieiieiiiieeiiteesitee ettt e e sttt e st e e s te e e st teeesateessteessaseeesaseeesasaeessseesssseeessbeeesnbeeennsenas 960 1,173
(O 1T R V=T 1 £ OO P PSP P PP PRPOPPPRPP 800 1,115
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 1€ases ..........ccccceeiiiiiirnereiiiiiiinnenneinnncnnnneeenensscssenn 2,032 2,627

Group as a lessor

The Group has entered lease agreements on its investment properties and real estates. The lease agreements are for a period of up to
17 years, with majority being non-cancellable agreements.

2013 2012
[T aF= LA I e o T=IR Y=Y  RSSPRT 2,353 2,084
OVEr 1 YEAr AN UP TO 5 YEAIS ..eeneieiiieiiieitestie ettt ettt e st e bt e bt e s ut e st e e be e beesaeesaseeabeesbeesasesabeenbeebeessteenbeenbeebeanneas 5,086 5,898
OVEI 5 YBATS ciiitieiieee ittt e e e ettt e e e e sttt e e e e e et e e e s eaaaa bt e e e s e asba et e e e s aaabbb e e e e s s sasb b b e e eeeeassbbaeeeeeaannsbeeeesennnnneeessannnnnnees 1,480 1,968
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 1€ases ..........ccccceeieiiiirnneeiiiiiiiiinnneenincncnnenenesescssnnnn 8,919 9,950
Assets under management and under custody
P Y= AU Vo LT 4 g T Tod T e o =Y o | PSSP 895,457 819,684
ASSEES UNAEE CUSTOTY ..vviiuriitieiiieieieieeiteesteestteeteesteesseesseeesteesseasaeasseesseesseesssessseesseesseesssesssaessessssesssesssesnsessseessaennes 1,490,888 1,378,454

Legal matters

The Group has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of
loss reasonably estimated, the Group makes adjustments, if appropriate, to account for any adverse effects which the claims may have
on its financial standing. At the end of the year, the Group had several unresolved legal claims.

i) Contingent liabilities
Investigation and legal proceedings regarding alleged breaches of competition law

The Icelandic Competition Authority (ICA) has opened a formal investigation into practices of all card issuers in Iceland, including the
Bank, and by two card payment acquirers, including Valitor. The investigation was initiated by a complaint by Kortapjénustan hf., a card
payment acquirer, in 2009. The case concerns alleged concerted practices through associations of undertakings connected to decisions
on multilateral interchange fees and alleged anti-competitive practices towards competitors in the field of acquiring.
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36. Legal matters, continued

The ICA has also opened a formal investigation into the alleged abuse of an alleged collective dominant position by the three largest
retail banks in Iceland, including the Bank. The investigation was initiated by separate complaints from BYR hf. and MP banki hf. made
in 2010. The complaints from BYR hf. and MP banki hf. concern the terms of the Banks’ mortgage arrangements, which, according to
the complaint, deter individuals from moving their business to other banks and thereby restrict competition.

The ICA received a complaint from Tryggingamidstodin hf. in 2010. The complaint concerns the banks’ alleged tying of banking services
and insurances.

The extent of the investigations and outcome of the cases before the ICA is still uncertain as well as any effect on the Group. However,
if the Bank or Valitor will be deemed to have violated the Competition Act, it could result in a fine or restrictions by the ICA.

In April 2013 the ICA imposed a ISK 500 million fine on Valitor for abusing its dominant position on the payment card market and
violating conditions set in an earlier decision of the Authority. Valitor appealed the decision to the Competition Appeals Committee. In
October 2013 the Committee confirmed the decision of the Competition Authority. Valitor may decide to file a motion and appeal this
administrative decision to the courts.

In 2012 Kortapjonustan hf. filed a suit against Valitor claiming damages for the alleged loss suffered by Kortapjonustan hf. due to
alleged breaches of competition law based on a settlement made by Valitor with the ICA, published in ICA decision No 4/2008. The case
is still being contested before the District Court of Reykjavik. In July 2013 Kortapjénustan hf. filed another suit, now against the Bank
and Valitor, claiming damages for the alleged loss suffered by Kortapjénustan hf. in relation to the alleged breaches of competition law
based on the complaint to the ICA in 2009, stated above. The case is being contested before the District Court of Reykjavik.

Legal proceedings regarding the Bank’s variable interest rate

Two borrowers have issued summons against the Group where they claim that a clause in their mortgage loan (in foreign currency),
where it is stated that the bond shall bear a variable interest rate, which the Bank was authorised to change, is illegal and unbinding.
The borrowers make e.g. the claim that it will be recognised by the court that said clause on interest rates is illegal. The Bank defended
against the borrowers’ summons and with a judgment on 20 December 2013 the Group was acquitted. The case has not yet been
appealed to the Supreme Court of Iceland but if the borrowers appeal and the Supreme Court sides with the borrowers, it could have a
negative effect on the Bank’s loan portfolio with variable interest rates in foreign currency (i.e. foreign currency-linked loans in I1SK) and
also in ISK.

ii) Other legal matters

Legal proceedings regarding CPI loans

Recently, there has been discussion in the media where it has been claimed that the indexation of the principal of mortgage loans to
consumers to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) is possibly illegal and therefore the appreciation of the principal of each loan, due to the
rise of the CPI, should be annulled. Reportedly, there are two court cases in motion regarding this issue, but the Bank is not a party to
those cases. Recently, the Supreme Court requested Advisory Opinions from the EFTA Court in two separate cases on the
interpretation of certain provisions of an EC directive, in cases where the disagreement is whether the CPl-indexation of a loan is in
accordance with certain provisions of Icelandic law on contracts. If successful in a court case, one possible outcome is that a debtor
would receive a part or all of the CPI-indexation of his loan annulled. The Group considers the possibility of this happening unlikely, and
has therefore made no provision due to this.

i) Legal matters concluded
Legal proceedings regarding Stefnir hf.

In October 2011 the winding-up committee of Landsbanki islands brought legal action against Stefnir hf. demanding the annulment and
repayment of payments made by Landsbanki islands of money market deposits which matured in early October 2008 to two funds
managed by Stefnir. The amount involved was ISK 450 million plus interest. As a result of this judgment by Reykjavik District Court,
Stefnir, on behalf of the two funds, was ordered to repay the amounts. The company made provision in respect of this case in 2012.
The case was appealed to the Supreme Court of Iceland where Stefnir was acquitted on 16 January 2014 and the provision has been
revised in the accounts for 2013.
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36. Legal matters, continued

Legal proceedings regarding FX loans

With a summons, presented to the Bank on 14 November 2012, Hagar hf., a listed company, claimed from the Bank ISK 1,152 million
plus interest from 19 October 2009 until the date of payment, minus a payment of ISK 515 million made on 19 December 2011. The
summons followed Hagar’s announcement on the Icelandic Stock Exchange from 21 March 2012, whereby Hagar announced that it had
decided to take legal action against the Bank regarding Hagar’s foreign currency linked loans, which it had reimbursed in full to the
Bank in October 2009. Hagar’s foreign currency linked loans were recalculated by the Bank in accordance with the Bank's notification of
15 June 2011. The outcome of the recalculation showed that the Bank owed Hagar ISK 515 million, which the Bank subsequently paid
to Hagar. After the Supreme Court of Iceland had passed its judgment of 15 February 2012 (in case no. 600/2011), Hagar expressed its
view to the Bank that, in light of the above judgment, Hagar believed it had a further claim against the Bank regarding said foreign
currency linked loans. The Bank rejected Hagar’s claim and defended the case in court. With a judgement of the District Court
pronounced on 28 May 2013 the Bank was acquitted of Hagar’s claim. Hagar appealed the judgement to the Supreme Court and with a
judgement on 12 December 2013 the Supreme Court confirmed the judgement of the District Court and the Bank was acquitted. The
effect of this judgement has been calculated in the Groups provision for foreign currency loans.

37. The uncertainty regarding the book value of foreign currency loans

In recent years there has been considerable uncertainty over the legality of foreign currency loans to individuals and companies and the
recalculation of those loans which are clearly currency-linked loans in Icelandic krona. Firstly, there has been uncertainty over which
loans are considered legal foreign currency loans and which loans are considered currency-linked loans in Icelandic krona, and secondly
over how loans in the latter category should be recalculated. The Bank has been required to recalculate numerous loans which are
considered currency-linked loans in Icelandic krona on the basis of the Interest and Indexation Act No. 38/2001 and after examining the
judgments passed by the Supreme Court which were considered to set a precedent for the Bank’s loans.

The uncertainty of legality of FX loans has continued in 2013 and the Group constantly monitors judgments involving itself and others
to refine its provisions on foreign currency loans. After consideration of such judgments, the Group provisioned ISK 1.5 billion in 2013 in
addition to ISK 19.6 billion impaired in 2011 and 2012.

Although there is more clarity in the matters of FX loans there still remains uncertainty regarding foreign currency linked loans in three
respects:

Firstly, the estimation uncertainty associated with the Group’s interpretation of the impact of several judgments of the Supreme Court
of Iceland regarding the method of recalculation of illegal currency-linked loans. This uncertainty is somewhat mitigated by the use of
FME prescribed methodology. In the event the Group’s interpretation of the judgments were to change, the total loss could be greater
or less than the current provision in the accounts of ISK 5.4 billion.

Secondly, there have been claims that currency-linked loans to consumers should, from the date they have been recalculated and until
the loans are repaid, bear their contractual interest rates, and not the non-indexed interest rate for the Icelandic Krona posted by the
Central Bank of Iceland, as stipulated in Act No. 151/2010. This will probably be determined by future court rulings, for which it is
currently not possible to predict the outcome.

Thirdly, the legal uncertainty over the outcome of future legal decisions and new or amended government legislation that may require
the recalculation of other categories of foreign currency loans that the Group has not previously considered as vulnerable. This will be
determined by future court rulings and government actions, for which it is not currently possible to predict an outcome. Some
uncertainty still exists over the impact of the above matters on the carrying value of the Group's portfolio of foreign currency linked
loans at the end of the year.

Nevertheless, the Group considers its portfolio of foreign currency linked loans fully provisioned for the most likely outcome.

38. Events after Balance Sheet date
In January 2014 the shareholders of Eik fasteignafélag hf. approved an agreement signed by Arion Bank hf. and Eik fasteignafélag hf. in
December 2013 on the purchase of all of issued shares of Landfestar hf. After the acquisition Arion Bank hf. will be the largest

shareholder of Eik fasteignafélag hf. The agreement was signed subject to due diligence and approval by the Icelandic Competition
Authority.
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RELATED PARTY
39. Related party

The Group has a related party relationship with Kaupskil ehf., being the ultimate controlling party with 87% stake in Arion Bank, the
Board of Directors of Kaupskil ehf. and Kaupthing hf., being the parent company of Kaupskil ehf.

Icelandic State Financial Investments (ISFI, a separate state institution under the Ministry of Finance) manages a 13% stake in Arion
Bank and thus has influence over the Group. ISFl and related entities are defined as related parties.

The Board of Directors of Arion Bank, key Management personnel of the Bank and the Group‘s associates are defined as related
parties, as well as close family members of individuals referred to above and legal entities controlled by them.

No unusual transactions took place with related parties during the year. Transactions with related parties have been conducted on an
arm's length basis. There have been no further guarantees provided or received for related party receivables or payables.

2013 Net
Balances with related parties Assets  Liabilities balance
Shareholders with control OVEr the GrOUP ......c.eccieeciierieeie et ve et see e s aeeaeeeeens 554 (63,949) (63,395)
Shareholders with influence over the Group .........cccierieriieiiee e 19 (2,003) (1,984)
Board of Directors and key Management PErsONNEl ........ccocevvueevieieesiesiieesieeseeseeeeeeseeeseeesaesneens 228 (68) 160
Associates and other related PArties ......ceoceereerieiieeee ettt b et ae e 36,546 (19,015) 17,531
Balances With related Parties .......cccccviiiirceneiiiiiiiiinneieieiennneteiesisssssessesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssns 37,347 (85,035) (47,688)
Interest Interest Other Other
Transactions with related parties income expense income expense
Shareholders with control over the Group - (1,206) 76

33 - 2 (11)

Shareholders with influence over the Group
Board of Directors and key Management personnel ........cccccoceevvveeveeneenneeiveeseeeseeennnns 7 (3) 27 -
Associates and other related Parties ......ooceeveerieriieeiieeeese e 4,237 (704) 1,233 (196)
Transactions with related Parties .........cccccvieiiicereiiiiniinnenenniennnneeeeeessssssnssssssesssens 4,277 (1,912) 1,337 (207)
2012 Net
Balances with related parties Assets  Liabilities balance
Shareholders with control OVEr the GrOUD ....ccuecceeicieerieeee ettt e e et see e e s neenneens 704 (61,095) (60,391)
Shareholders with influence over the Group .........cocieieiiiiiiee e - (1,960) (1,960)
Board of Directors and key Management PErsONNEl ........ccocevcueeieerieeiieniieesieeseeseeseeeeeeseeeseeseeens 129 (128) 1
Associates and other related PArties .....ceiceereerie ittt ere e 53,737 (16,379) 37,358
Balances With related Parties .......ccccccvcicircneiiiiiiiiinneiiieiiiinnneseeesisssnsssessssssssssssssssssssssnssassssssssns 54,570 (79,562) (24,992)
Interest Interest Other Other
Transactions with related parties income expense income expense
Shareholders with control over the GroUP ......cccccvecceeiiesee e - (1,207) 57 -
Shareholders with influence over the Group .........cccceveeriiiiinnieneneeeeee e - (18) - -
Board of Directors and key Management personnel .........ccccoceeveveeveeneenneeieeeseeeneeennnns 10 (3) - -
Associates and other related Parties .......ccoceeveerieriieeieenee e 4,118 (279) 771 (173)
Transactions with related Parties .........cccccvviiiineeriiiiniinnnnin e 4,128 (1,507) 828 (173)
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RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

The Group faces various risks arising from its day to day operations. Managing risk is therefore a core activity within the Group. The key
to effective risk management is a process of on-going identification of significant risk, quantification of risk exposure, actions to limit
risk and constant monitoring of risk. This process of risk management and the ability to evaluate, manage and correctly price the risk
encountered is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability as well as to be able to ensure that the Group’s exposure to risk remains
within acceptable levels.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Group’s risk management framework and ensuring that satisfactory risk
management processes and policies for controlling the Group’s risk exposure are in place. The Board allocates risk management of
subsidiaries to the relevant subsidiary. For the parent company (the Bank) the Board sets risk appetite, which is translated into
exposure limits and targets monitored by the Bank’s Risk Management division.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for sustaining an effective risk management framework, policies and control as well as
maintaining a high level of risk awareness among the employees, making risk everyone’s business.

The Bank operates several committees to manage risk. The Board Audit and Risk Committee (BARC) is responsible for supervising the
Bank’s risk management framework, risk appetite and the internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP). The Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO), chaired by the CEO or his deputy, is responsible for managing the asset-liability mismatch, liquidity risk,
market risk, and interest rate risk and capital management. The Bank operates four credit committees: The Board Credit Committee
(BCC) which decides on all major credit risk exposures, the Arion Credit Committee (ACC) which operates within limits specified as a
fraction of the Bank’s capital, and the Corporate Credit Committee (CCC) and Retail Branch Committees (RBC) which operate within
tighter credit granting limits.

The Bank’s Internal Audit conducts independent reviews of the Bank’s and several subsidiaries’ operations, risk management
framework, processes, policies and measurements. Internal Audit discusses its results with management and reports its findings and
recommendations to the BARC.

The Bank’s Risk Management division is headed by the Chief Risk Officer. It is independent and centralised and reports directly to the
CEO. The division is divided into five units: Credit Analysis, which supports and monitors the credit granting process; Credit Control,
which monitors credit exposures on a customer-by-customer basis; Economic Capital, which is responsible for the Bank’s ICAAP;
Portfolio Risk, which monitors liquidity risk and risks in the Bank’s assets and liabilities at the portfolio level; and Operational Risk which
monitors risks associated with the daily operation of the Bank.

The most significant risks the Group is exposed to are credit risk, including concentration risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, interest rate
risk and legal risk. These risk factors are to the largest extent encountered within the Bank. Subsidiaries bear risk arising from real
estate market and private equity prices and from asset management and insurance activities.

The Group is to some extent exposed to risks through the loan portfolio that are related to assumptions about asset valuation and
asset performance. Provisions have in some cases been made to meet possible losses. Concentration in the Group’s loan portfolio is
relatively high; the total sum of large exposures net of eligible collateral at the end of the year 2013 was 45% of the capital base, down
from 60% in the previous year.

The Group is exposed to currency risk. The Bank has met the legal limits on currency imbalance since 2012. The Group’s operations are
subject to interest rate risk associated with a mismatch between interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities.

Liquidity risk is a large risk factor in the Group’s operation due to maturity mismatch between assets and liabilities. The maturity of
loans exceeds the maturity of deposits, approximately half of which is on demand.

The Group faces legal risk related to previous court judgments on foreign currency loans, see Note 37.
Further information on risk management and capital adequacy is provided in the annual Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

and in the Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures for 2013. The Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures 2013 will be published in March 2014 and be available on the
Bank’s website, www.arionbanki.is. The disclosures have not been subject to external audit.
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40. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual
obligations.

Credit risk arises anytime the Group commits its funds, resulting in capital or earnings being dependent on counterparty, issuer or
borrower performance. Loans to customers and credit institutions are the largest source of credit risk. Credit risk is also inherent in
other types of assets, such as bonds and debt instruments, and off balance sheet items such as commitments and guarantees.

Managing and analysing the Group's loan portfolio is of utmost importance. Great emphasis is placed on the quality of the credit
portfolio, by maintaining a strict credit process, critically inspecting loan applications, actively monitoring the credit portfolio and
identifying and reacting to possible problem loans at an early stage as well as restructuring of impaired credits.

The Group grants credit based on well informed lending decisions and seeks business with strong parties with strong collaterals and
good repayment capacity. The risk level of each credit is considered in the pricing.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by setting limits on the amount of risk the Group is willing to accept for individual counterparties
and group of connected clients, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. The Group seeks to limit its total credit risk
through diversification of the loan portfolio across sectors and by limiting large exposures to group of connected clients.
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40. Credit risk, continued

Maximum exposure to credit risk and credit concentration by industry sectors

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Statement of Financial Position, by industry classification at the end of the year before the effect of mitigation due
to collateral agreements or other credit enhancements. The Group uses an internal industry classification which is based on the ISATO8 standard classification. ISATO8 is based on the NACE Rev. 2

classification standard.

2013
Maximum exposure to credit risk related to on-balance sheet assets

Real estate Information Financial Industry,

activities and com-  Wholesale and energy and Agriculture

and Fishing munication and retail insurance manu-  Transpor- Public and
Individuals construction industry technology trade activities facturing tation Services sector forestry Total
Cash & balances with Central Bank ........... - - - - - 37,999 - - - - - 37,999
Loans to credit institutions ..........ccccveeeennn. - - - - - 102,307 - - - - - 102,307
Loans to CUSLOMErS ....ccccecvevveruerienienennenne 310,491 83,002 60,906 24,025 55,061 27,535 22,661 18,966 19,793 8,682 4,652 635,774
Financial instruments ........c.ccoceveeivenienienne. 3 26 1 7 42 2,960 1,336 6 514 58,836 - 63,731
Other assets with credit risk ..........c.c....... 295 312 78 15 835 3,636 23 1 506 45 - 5,746

Total on balance sheet maximum

exposure to credit risk .......cceeeueeeiiuneenn. 310,789 83,340 60,985 24,047 55,938 174,437 24,020 18,973 20,813 67,563 4,652 845,557

Maximum exposure to credit risk related to off-balance sheet items

Financial guarantees .........ccccoeeevveicrennne 387 1,781 534 769 1,328 1,183 2,539 500 833 60 8 9,922
Unused overdrafts .......cceeeveneniencnennen. 22,282 1,433 395 591 4,095 1,951 1,653 298 2,005 2,298 371 37,371
Loan commitments ........ccceeeevvenieneneennens 205 6,651 2,895 2,617 12,517 5,536 16,529 837 778 20 - 48,585
Total off balance sheet maximum

exposure to credit risk .......cccecueerinneenn. 22,874 9,865 3,824 3,977 17,940 8,670 20,721 1,635 3,616 2,378 379 95,878
Maximum exposure to credit risk ........... 333,663 93,205 64,809 28,024 73,878 183,107 44,741 20,608 24,429 69,941 5,031 941,435
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40. Credit risk, continued

2012
Maximum exposure to credit risk related to on-balance sheet assets

Real estate Information Financial Industry,
activities and com-  Wholesale and energyand Agriculture
and Fishing munication and retail insurance manu-  Transpor- Public and
Individuals construction industry technology trade activities facturing tation Services sector forestry Total
Cash & balances with Central Bank ........... - - - - - 29,746 - - - - - 29,746
Loans to credit institutions ............ccvveee... - - - - - 101,011 - - - - - 101,011
Loans to customers ......ccccovveiieeiiiiiiiinennnn. 242,775 68,834 67,752 28,754 55,621 24,693 22,794 21,692 18,745 9,952 4,998 566,610
Financial instruments .........ccccccveecveeecnnenn. - 25 - 28 - 74,630 1,210 7 1,233 42,845 - 119,978
Other assets with credit risk .........cc.cccu..... 316 1,569 15 83 80 2,388 47 1 501 19 11 5,030
Total on balance sheet maximum
exposure to credit risk ......cccceveriiessnnnenns 243,091 70,428 67,767 28,865 55,701 232,468 24,051 21,700 20,479 52,816 5,009 822,375
Maximum exposure to credit risk related to off-balance sheet items
Financial guarantees 388 919 348 592 1,879 1,510 2,294 466 677 95 17 9,185
Unused overdrafts ... 21,499 1,143 295 463 3,548 1,666 1,555 305 1,606 2,209 256 34,545
Loan commitments ........cccceevveeeniieenninenn. 118 2,214 5,298 215 10,300 5,634 11,375 837 - - 10 36,001

Total off balance sheet maximum
exposure to credit risk ......cccceveiiiersnnnens 22,005 4,276 5,941 1,270 15,727 8,810 15,224 1,608 2,283 2,304 283 79,731

5,292 902,106

Maximum exposure to credit risk ............ 265,096 74,704 73,708 30,135 71,428 241,278 39,275 23,308 22,762 55,120
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40. Credit risk, continued

Loans to customers specified by sectors 2013 2012
INAIVIAUALS ..ttt b e b e e bt e a e et e e bt e ae et e bt e bt et et e eh e e bt et e e b e e bt e st e et e ebeennenrennean 48.8% 42.8%
Real estate activities and CONSTIUCTION .....cocuiiiiiiiiiieeee ettt ettt st et esbeesae e saseeane s 13.1% 12.1%
[T 2T T=d T o [V 1y i oSS 9.6% 12.0%
Information and commuNIcation tECANOIOGY ........coouiiruiiriiiiieiee ettt s 3.8% 5.1%
Wholesale and retail tratde .........oveieeiiiie ettt b e s bbb bt et et bt et eenes 8.7% 9.8%
Financial and iNSUIANCE @CHIVITIES ...ccoueiruiiiiiiiieiieete ettt ettt ettt et sae e sat e e be e beesbeesabeeabeeseenaeas 4.3% 4.4%
Industry, energy and MaNUFACTUNING .....c.covieiiiiieee ettt te e te et e s e st e e b e e be e saeesraeesbeesseessseesseenseessnanneas 3.5% 4.0%
Transportation ... 3.0% 3.8%
SEIVICES ettt ittt ettt ettt et e s bt et e et e bt e s ae e s as e e bt e s b e e sh e e e a bt e b e e Rt e eh e e e R bt e bt e b e e e R e e e e e e bt e b e e e Raeean e e bt e reesaneeare s 3.1% 3.3%
Public administration, human health and social aCIVItIES .........ccccuieiiiiiiiiiee e es 1.4% 1.8%
F el U (U =N T Vo IR (o =T o VSO SRRPR 0.7% 0.9%

100.0% 100.0%

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty and the exposure type. The
main types of collateral obtained are as follows:
- Retail loans to individuals: Mortgages in residential properties.
- Corporate loans: Charges over real estate properties, fishing vessels and other fixed and current assets, inventory and trade
receivables, cash and securities.
- Derivative exposures: Cash, treasury notes and bills, asset backed bonds, listed equity and funds that consist of eligible securities.

Collateral value is monitored and additional collateral requested in accordance with the underlying agreement. Collateral value is
reviewed in line with the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses.

Collateral held by the Bank against different types of financial assets

Cash and
2013 securities
Cash and balances with Central Bank .........c.ccccevveevienineniecncneneeenenee -
Loans to credit iNStItULIONS .......cooeiriiiiiieienie e -
Loans to customers
INAIVIAUALS <ottt st 659
Real estate activities and cONSLrUCtion ........cceeeevveeeeieeeeeiieeeccree e, 3,887
FIShING INAUSTIY .eveeieieeceee et 89
Information and communication technology .........cccceevvevveveenienveennen. 26
Wholesale and retail trade ........cceeevveeeeiiieccieccceeccee e s 6,664
Financial and inSUrance activities .........covvveeeveeeeeeeecree et 12,416
Industry, energy and manufacturing ........c.cccoeveeveenieniieeneeniesieeee e 180
TranNSPOITATION ...vvviieeiiiiiiiiee e e e e s s 69
SEIVICES eiiiitee ettt ettt ettt ettt e s e e et e st e e snr e s nne e e nareeeas 285
Public administration, human health and social activities ...........c..c..... 22
AGrIiCUtUre and fOr@Stry ......oocueeiierienie et 5
FINaNCial iINSEIUMENTS ..ecocveeiiieeiciee ettt e eanee e 2,867
Collateral held against different types of financial assets ............c.cuueeee 27,169

Real
estates

269,700
55,427
3,039
1,842
10,095
441
8,645
563
3,314
3,190
2,331

358,587

Fishing
vessels

49
12
52,878

46
51
98

53,139

Other
collateral

362
1,053
2,361
20,452
28,447
9,116
10,719
2,310
2,994
170

136

78,120

Total
collateral

270,770
60,379
58,367
22,320
45,211
21,973
19,590

2,993
6,691
3,382
2,472
2,867
517,015

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2013 L8

Amounts are in ISK millions




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. Credit risk, continued

Cash and Real Fishing Other Total
2012 securities estates vessels  collateral  collateral
Cash and balances with Central Bank .........c.ccccevveevienenineencneneeeseeee - - - - -
Loans to credit iNStItULIONS .......cooeieiieiiieienie e - - - - -
Loans to customers
INAIVIAUAIS <. e e et e e earee e 560 208,967 39 84 209,650
Real estate activities and CONSLrUCtioN ........cceeeeveeeeiveeeeiieee e, 677 46,229 5 267 47,178
FIShING INAUSTIY .eveeieeeecee e e e 642 2,311 50,528 6,020 59,502
Information and communication technology .........cccceceeveeveeneeeineenen. 78 625 - 17,981 18,684
Wholesale and retail trade 1,900 13,793 - 17,489 33,181
Financial and inSUrance activities .........cccouveeevveeeeiveeeeree et 11,141 526 - 884 12,551
Industry, energy and manufacturing ........ccccceeveeveenieniieeneenieneeeeeene 222 7,014 50 1,058 8,344
TranNSPOrTATION ...ueviiieiiiiiieeee e e e e s 65 493 76 688 1,322
SEIVICES .evvvieieiieiiiiieeeeeeiittee e e e sstte e e e e s ssbtreeesesssaaaeeeesesnansaeees 249 2,911 57 1,215 4,432
Public administration, human health and social activities ...........cc........ 28 3,263 - 91 3,382
AGrIiCUtUre and fOr@Stry ......oocuieiierienie et 10 1,858 - 9 1,876
FINaNCial iINSEIUMENTS ..ecocuveiiciieiciee ettt e 1,219 68,628 69,847
Collateral held against different types of financial assets .........cccceevuneens 16,792 287,991 50,754 114,414 469,950

The information is for loans and collateral at the Bank only.

In the tables above, collateral is allocated based on the claim value of loans. In the 2012 financial statement, collateral was allocated
based on book value. The 2012 figures have been restated to reflect this change in methodology.

Neither Past
Credit quality by class of financial assets past due but Individu-
due nor not ally
2013 impaired impaired  impaired* Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank .........ccceieoiieiiiieiciecceeeeee e 37,999 - - 37,999
Loans to credit iNSTItULIONS ...cccciiieee ettt e e e e e e e anaaeeeeeeanns 102,307 - - 102,307
Loans to customers
Loans to corporates . .. 304,880 9,789 10,614 325,283
LOANS tO INAIVIAUALS ....vvveiieieiiiiiie ettt eeetae e e e e eeabrae e e e e s eabbaeeeeeeeans 268,485 34,607 7,399 310,491
FINANCIAl INSTIUMENTES 1.vviiiveeieiee ettt ebe e e ebe e e e bae e e eaaeeebaeeesaeeeeneeeenns 63,731 - - 63,731
Other assets With Credit FisK .........coocviiiiiieiiiie e et 5,746 - - 5,746
Credit quality of loans 783,148 44,396 18,013 845,557
2012
Cash and balances With Central Bank ........cocvvieeiiiieieeieieeccieec et 29,746 - - 29,746
Loans to credit iINSTILULIONS ....cccviiiciieeciie et ettt e e ar e e eaaee s 101,011 - - 101,011

Loans to customers
275,837 17,851 30,149 323,837

200,080 22,845 19,848 242,773
119,978 - - 119,978

5,030 - - 5,030
731,682 40,696 49,997 822,375

Loans to corporates
Loans to individuals

Financial instruments
Other assets with credit risk

Credit quality of loans

* The figures for individually impaired reflects both impairment due to legal uncertainty related to foreign currency loans as well as
impairment due to a deterioration in the borrower's credit quality.
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40. Credit risk, continued

Neither past due nor impaired loans

The Bank uses internal credit rating models to monitor the development of credit risk and to estimate customers’ probability of default
(PD). The Bank rates customers with one of three models. For large corporates the Bank uses quantitative information based on
financial statements as well as qualitative data. Credit ratings of individuals and SMEs are based on statistical models using historical
information which has been found to be predictive.

The table below shows loans to customers which are neither past due nor impaired, broken down by the Bank's classification scale,
where 5 denotes the highest risk.

Risk classification

2013 1 2 3 4 5 Not rated Total
Individuals . 12,201 68,291 120,751 53,841 9,978 3,422 268,484
Real estate activities and construction 1,889 4,924 37,703 6,848 708 27,612 79,684
Fishing indUSLIY ...coceevveeriiniieeeecieeeeeeee, 26,962 6,070 7,193 10,865 3,162 3,707 57,959
Information and communication technology ....... 19,242 2,802 1,065 294 2 1,011 24,416
Wholesale and retail trade ....... . 12,130 9,550 18,057 3,384 1,644 6,395 51,160
Financial and insurance activities .........ccccccevveene. 102 9,178 1,429 211 - 12,721 23,641
Industry, energy and manufacturing ...........c........ 4,610 12,193 2,979 580 550 758 21,670
Transportation ........ccceevvevieeiennecnieeceeeeeen 197 17,404 573 458 87 244 18,963
Services .......... . 117 10,198 3,288 914 110 442 15,069
Public sector 85 3,335 917 178 38 4,052 8,605
Agriculture and forestry ......c.cceeeeveevieniieniieenene 162 480 1,636 769 11 656 3,714
Neither past due nor impaired loans ................. 77,697 144,425 195,591 78,342 16,290 61,020 573,365
2012

INAIVIAUALS oo 10,411 56,716 85,813 37,534 8,110 6,949 205,533
Real estate activities and construction . . 27 1,341 25,099 17,636 9,635 3,185 56,923
Fishing industry ......cocceoeverieieneneeeeeeeeeee 2,580 18,566 8,080 9,306 3,210 14,474 56,217
Information and communication technology ....... 139 2,920 514 276 20,146 1,414 25,409
Wholesale and retail trade ........cccccoevevieienenenne 12,535 7,001 15,840 2,710 1,706 7,248 47,040
Financial and insurance activities ..........cccceecveeenn. 546 223 1,342 225 6,508 7,430 16,274
Industry, energy and manufacturing .................... 1,316 3,069 2,370 821 3,201 10,713 21,490
Transportation ......cccccveccivveeeeinnciieeee e 144 20,062 214 535 1 482 21,439
SEIVICES weviiiiiieeieeieeeee et 758 2,000 9,741 471 82 1,113 14,166
PUDIIC SECLON ..ot 264 3,006 620 103 112 4,471 8,577
Agriculture and forestry ........ccceeeeveeneesieecieenenns 2 311 1,357 345 48 788 2,851
Neither past due nor impaired loans ................. 28,724 115,215 150,992 69,962 52,759 58,266 475,918

Exposures that are ‘Not Rated’ are primarily due to newly formed entities and entities for which the Bank’s rating models are deemed
unreliable, e.g. some public sector entities and some holding companies.

Past due but not impaired loans by class of loans More

Upto 31to60 61 to 90 than 90
2013 30 days days days days Total
[eE[a I o ol ] g oTo] - | 1T JR SO PUPTUPPRRNY 6,100 923 111 2,655 9,789

Loans to individuals .........ccceeuene 11,224 3,751 543 19,089 34,607
Past due but not impaired loans . 17,325 4,673 655 21,744 44,396
2012

LOANS £O COMPOTAteS ...uuueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiitet ettt e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 6,285 951 322 10,293 17,851
Loans to iNAIVIAUAIS ......ccuererieiirieneeiee e 8,719 3,558 287 10,281 22,845
Past due but not impaired [0ans ........ccccoeevvvnenneeneiiinnne 15,004 4,509 609 20,574 40,696
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40. Credit risk, continued

The majority of the past due but not impaired loans have been acquired at discount. These loans are not considered to be impaired
unless the specific allowance exceeds the discount received.

Collateral repossessed
During the year, the Group took possession of real estates with the carrying value of ISK 1,692 million and other assets with the value of
ISK 5 million, all which the Group is in the process of selling, see Note 27.

Impaired loans to customers specified by sector

Loans impaired due Loans impaired due
to borrower to FX-loan court
credit quality rulings
Impair- Loan Impair- Loan  Totalim- Total loan

ment carrying ment carrying  pairment carrying
2013 amount amount amount amount amount amount
INAIVIAUALS ©eeeeie it 11,538 18,496 173 614 11,711 19,110
Real estate activities and construction ..........ccceeeeeevveeeecneeennns 1,726 3,755 37 113 1,763 3,868
FiShiNg iNUSTIY ...cvveiiiiieieieieeeeee e 617 1,899 612 1,870 1,229 3,769
Information and communication technology ..........c.ccceeueene. 164 190 - - 164 190
Wholesale and retail trade ... 4,020 5,941 14 44 4,034 5,985
Financial and insurance activities 4,513 6,080 - - 4,513 6,080
Industry, energy and manufacturing ........c.ccceeeeveenieniieniienne 446 996 17 33 463 1,029
TransSPOrtation ......eeeeiieiiiiiieei it 65 356 6 9 71 365
SEIVICES ..vvvieieiieiiitee e e ettt e e e s stre e e e e s srrre e e e e s saaaeeesessaaaaeeessens 775 1,865 43 53 818 1,918
Public administration, human health and social activities ...... 8 35 - - 8 35
Agriculture and forestry ........cceveerieeieeneenienee e 352 790 - - 352 790

24,224 40,403 902 2,736 25,126 43,139

2012
INAIVIAUALS .ot 13,143 19,397 5,032 18,626 18,175 38,023
Real estate activities and construction . . 4,684 10,091 1,586 4,139 6,270 14,230
FiShiNg iNUSTIY ..ovveiiiiiieieieceee e 2,361 4,343 2,648 6,913 5,009 11,256
Information and communication technology ..........ccccceevueene. 7,561 11,192 187 307 7,748 11,499
Wholesale and retail trade .........ccovveeeeiieiiviieee e 5,295 8,399 2,639 5,638 7,934 14,037
Financial and insurance activities ... . 6,405 8,363 1,142 1,492 7,547 9,855
Industry, energy and manufacturing ........c.ccceceeveevieniienienne 604 1,152 483 999 1,087 2,151
TransSPOrtation .......eeeeiieiiiieeei it 35 40 36 120 71 160
SEIVICES wenutienieeeiieeiie ettt sttt ettt e st et e et e st e sateebeesaeesareeas 744 1,168 505 1,328 1,249 2,496
Public administration, human health and social activities ...... 30 38 262 406 292 444
Agriculture and fOrestry ......cccocveeeeeeeecieeeciee e 636 895 422 1,391 1,058 2,286

41,498 65,078 14,942 41,359 56,440 106,437

This note separates impairments that are due to the uncertainty related to foreign currency loans from impairments that are due to
borrower credit quality. At year end 2012, a provision of ISK 14,942 million had been made for losses due to court rulings for illegal FX
loans, in addition to the ISK 4,625 million transferred to liabilities. The provision is reduced to ISK 902 million at year end 2013 which
reflects that the process of recalculating illegal FX loans is nearing completion. Recalculation in 2013 resulted in an additional ISK 1,952
million impairment and ISK 15,992 write-off or repayments. Provisions due to borrower credit quality have been similarly reduced, year
on year — largely due to progress in corporate-loan restructuring during the period.
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40. Credit risk, continued

The Group made good progress in restructuring large loans to corporates resulting in a write-off. Consequently the impairment related
to borrowers credit quality decreased in the Statement of Financial position. The Group settled great part of the recalculated foreign
currency loans that had been provisioned for in prior years following court rulings about their illegality. That resulted in a decrease in
the impairment amount for FX rulings between years.

Large exposure

A large exposure is defined as an exposure to a group of financially related borrowers which exceeds 10% of the Group's capital base
net of eligible collateral according to FME rules No 625/2013.

The legal maximum for individual large exposures is 25% of capital base and the sum of all large exposures cannot exceed 400% of
capital base.

The largest exposure to a group of connected clients at the end of the period was ISK 29 billion (31.12.2012: ISK 29 billion) before taking
account of eligible collateral. The Group has three large exposures at the end of the period (31.12.2012: four exposures) net of eligible

collateral.
2013 2012
no. Gross Net Gross Net
- - 43% -
17% 17% 18% 17%
16% 16% 18% 18%
12% 12% 14% 14%
10% <10% 11% 11%
10% <10% <10% <10%
65% 45% 104% 60%

*See note 21 for information regarding the settlement of the Dromi bond.

No large exposure exceeds the legal limit of 25% of the Group's capital base at the end of the period.

The sum of exposures exceeding 10% of capital base is 65% of the Group's capital base before collateral mitigation or 45% net of
eligible collateral, which is well below the 400% legal maximum.

41. Market risk

Market risk is the current or prospective risk that changes in financial market prices and rates will cause fluctuations in the value and
cash flows of financial instruments.

Market risk arises from imbalances in the Group's balance sheet as well as in market making activities and position taking in bonds,
equities, currencies, derivatives, and other commitments which are marked to market.

The Group keeps firm track of the market risk and separates its exposure to market risk into trading book and non-trading book i.e.
banking book. The market risk in the trading book arises from proprietary trading activities. Market risk in the non-trading book arises
from various mismatches in assets and liabilities in e.g. currencies, maturities and interest rates. The market risk in the trading book
and in the non-trading book is managed separately by Treasury.

Market risk allowance is set by the Board in the Bank’s risk appetite and the CEO decides on the limit framework for each trading desk
and sets individual limits. The Asset and Liability Committee is responsible for managing the Bank’s overall market risk. Risk
management is responsible for measuring and monitoring market risk exposure, and reporting the exposure, usage and limit breaches.

The Group's strategy towards market risk is to limit the risk exposure due to imbalances in the Group's balance sheet but accept limited
risk in its trading book.
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41. Market risk, continued

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of financial
instruments. The Group's operations are subject to interest rate risk associated with a mismatch between interest bearing assets and
interest bearing liabilities. This mismatch is characterised by a large gap between the interest fixing period of assets and liabilities, with
a large amount of liabilities being demand deposits while the interest rates of assets are generally fixed for a long period, resulting in a
yield curve risk for the Group. The Group also faces interest basis risk between interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities
due to different types of floating rate indices in different currencies, of which the largest one is EUR.

The Group's strategy for managing its interest rate risk is to strive for an interest rate balance between assets and liabilities by offering
deposit incentives and by targeted lending practices.

Interest rate risk in the non-trading book

The following table shows the sensitivity of net present value of interest bearing assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates by
currency and interest fixing period in million of ISK in the Group. Risk is quantified as the net change in value of interest bearing assets
and liabilities, when assuming a simultaneous parallel shift upwards of all yield curves by 100 basis points. The sensitivity does not
relate to variation of annual net interest income.

2013 0-1Y 1-5Y 5-10Y 10-20Y >20Y

ISK, CPI Indexed linked ... (44) (823) 32 (557) (1,129)
ISK, Non Indexed HNKed .........ccoocuiriieriienienieeieeeesee et (103) (480) (28) (29) (17)
EUR oo ee ettt es s es e e esse e se s sesesess s s sanesene s esene 63 (1) - - -
OENBI ettt ettt st e r e aeas (36) - - - -
2012

ISK, CPIINAEXEA 1INKEM «..veovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeee e eesseeeeseeeeseeeeseses (35) (603) (282) (1,980) 811
ISK, Non Indexed HNKEd .......ccecvieriieiiereeceeeeee st (102) (433) 57 - (10)
EUR.... 71 (3) ; ; ;
Other (35) (6) (50) - -

Interest rate risk in the trading book

Interest rate risk in the trading book is quantified in the same way as that of the non-trading book.

2013 0-1Y 1-5Y 5-10Y 10-20Y >20Y
ISK, CPlIndexed liNKed ........ccceiiiiniiiieeieeeeeee e (12) 2 (0) (34) (92)
ISK, Non Indexed HNKEd .......cceevieeiieiiereececeeee st (1) (8) (61) (92) -
L0 PP PPPPTPPPPPPPPPPPRt 1 - - - -
Ot bbbttt 1 - - - -
2012

ISK, CP1INGEXEA INKEM +.vevveeveeeerevereeeseeereeesesesesesesesesesessseesessesseeseeseeens - (19) (80) (5) (270)
ISK, Non Indexed liNKed .........coueriiiiiiiiiieeieeeete et (50) (17) (8) (36) -
EUR oo eee e eeeeeeeeesa et es et ee e e e e s es e se s se e sesene s eens e seneeen (5) - - - -
OLNEI ettt ettt st e r e aeas (2) - - - -
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41. Market risk, continued

Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amount by residual maturity

2013
Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank ..................
Loans to credit institutions .......cc.ccoeeeeeveeeieeneennes
LOans to CUSTOMErS .....eovuviriiiieeiiciieeeeeee e
Financial instruments .........cccceeveenienvieeneeneeneens
Derivatives - assets leg
Derivatives - liabilities leg
Investment property .......cccceceeeverneeneeneeneeenen.
Investments in associates .........ccceeveeenieennieeennne
Intangible assets ...
TaX @SSLS ..vvviiiiiiiiiiiiir
Other @ssets .....c.eeoverererieneneneee e

Assets 31.12.2013 ........ccceeeeueeiiiirinennnscisnenennnnnes

Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank .........
DEPOSIES ..uevvveeiieeiiiieee et
Financial liabilities at fair value ........cccccevvueeneenne
Assets leg
Liabilities leg
Short position bonds and derivatives ...............
Short position bonds used for hedging .............
Tax liabilities ......cceoevererieiecneneeee
Other liabilities
BOITOWINGS ..eeeiiiiiiiiieiieeiieeee e
Subordinated liabilities ........c.cccoeeeveenieiniieniennen.
Liabilities 31.12.2013

Off-balance sheet items:

GUArANTEES ...coviviiiiiiieeec e
Unused overdraft
Loan commitments .......c.ccceevvviiiiiienniiccniecce,
Off-balance sheet items ..........ccccevveeeiiiriiiinnnnns

Net interest sensitivity gap .....ccccccuveeereeerennnnnne.
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Carrying On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 With no
amount  demand months months years years maturity
37,999 28,666 - 9,333 - - -

102,307 47,197 55,110 - - - -

635,774 2,151 56,696 85,340 221,979 269,608 -
86,541 6,889 1,240 13,349 38,569 3,684 22,810
23,567 447 8,008 4,094 11,018 - -

(22,497) - (7,918) (3,893) (10,686) - -
28,523 - - - - - 28,523
17,929 - - - - - 17,929

5,383 - - - - - 5,383
818 - - - - 818 -
23,576 53 4,014 693 973 13 17,830

938,850 84,956 117,060 108,715 261,521 274,123 92,475
28,000 17,692 3,622 6,636 50 - -

471,866 246,160 126,784 74,426 21,693 2,803 -

8,960 - 8,757 161 42 - -

(18,830) - (16,322) (911) (1,597) - -

19,592 - 16,881 1,072 1,639 - -
2,837 - 2,837 - - - -
5,362 - 5,362 - - - -
4,924 - 924 2,774 1,226 - -

43,667 371 28,344 5,098 2,671 263 6,919

204,568 - 1,868 2,319 27,779 172,602 -
31,918 - - - - 31,918 -

793,903 264,223 170,299 91,414 53,461 207,586 6,919

9,922 2,216 2,698 2,650 1,106 1,252 -
37,371 949 8,909 16,108 11,345 60 -
48,585 3,301 25,011 14,198 6,075 - -
95,878 6,466 36,618 32,956 18,526 1,312 -
49,069 (185,733) (89,857)  (15,655) 189,534 65,225 85,556
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41. Market risk, continued

2012
Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank ..................
Loans to credit institutions .........cccceceevenercneenne.
Loans to customers .......cccceeveeiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiees
Financial instruments ........cc.cocevenenieneneneneenne.
Derivatives - assets leg
Derivatives - liabilities leg
Investment Property .......ccceveeeceeereeeneenieenieeenens
Investments in associates .........ccccoeeeeiiiiciiieennan.
Intangible assets .......ccccveeieiiininiiice
TaX @SSELS cooiiiiiiieiceee e
Other @SSets ......ceeveerieriieerieenee et
Assets 31.12.2012

Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank .........
DEPOSIES ..uvviveeieeeiiiieee et
Financial liabilities at fair value .........ccocevvueenenns
YR Y=d R =T SRS
Liabilities leg

Short position bonds and derivatives ...............
Short position bonds used for hedging .............
Tax liabilities .....cceverereeiireneeeen
Other liabilities .......cooeeveeriiriieeeieeeeeeeee,
BOITOWINGS ..eeeiiiiiiiiieiieiieeee e
Subordinated liabilities ..........cccocevvieieninnnnnns
Liabilities 31.12.2012

Off-balance sheet items:
GUAMANTEES oottt
Unused overdraft .......ccoceveeieneneeiiencnccieene
Loan commitments .......c.cceevvveeinieeenieeenieeeeeeenn
Off-balance sheet items

Net interest sensitivity 8ap .....ccccceuveeeennenennnnnenes
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Carrying On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 With no
amount  demand months months years years  maturity
29,746 21,121 - 8,625 - - -

101,011 84,033 16,721 - 257 - -

566,610 3,000 47,511 92,258 208,232 215,609 -

137,800 8,494 693 48 69,159 41,584 17,822
18,737 - 16,739 444 1,554 - -

(17,949) - (16,046) (421) (1,482) - -
28,919 - - - - - 28,919

7,050 - - - - - 7,050
4,941 - - - - - 4,941
463 - - 17 446 - -
24,135 64 2,500 2,047 401 18 19,105

900,675 116,712 67,425 102,995 278,495 257,211 77,837
32,990 12,742 12,360 7,659 229 - -

448,683 268,016 118,584 34,890 24,947 2,246 -
13,465 - 12,575 98 480 312 -
(25,677) - (6,037)  (4,533) (9,646) (5,461) -
26,653 - 6,122 4,631 10,126 5,773 -

5,162 - 5,162 - - - -
7,327 - 7,327 - - - -
3,237 - 474 1,425 1,338 - -
42,117 492 25,952 5,180 3,207 308 6,978

195,085 601 1,865 2,858 31,686 158,075 -
34,220 - - - - 34,220 -

769,797 281,851 171,810 52,110 61,887 195,161 6,978

9,185 1,806 3,639 1,462 939 1,339 -
34,545 691 8,971 11,768 13,035 80 -
36,001 1,051 19,201 5,816 9,932 1 -
79,731 3,548 31,811 19,046 23,906 1,420 -
51,147 (168,687) (136,196) 31,839 192,702 60,630 70,859
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41. Market risk, continued

Inflation risk

The Group is exposed to inflation risk when there is a mismatch between inflation linked assets and liabilities. The total amount of
indexed assets amount to ISK 291.6 billion (31.12.2012: ISK 262.0 billion) and the total amount of indexed liabilities amount to ISK
223.7 billion (31.12.2012: 216.8 billion).

The following table shows the transaction maturity profile of indexed assets and liabilities. In previous statements, the profile was
based on residual maturity. The 2012 figures have therefore been updated to cash flow basis for accurate comparison. Financial
instruments held for proprietary trading or for liquidity purposes are assumed to be on demand.

2013 Uptol 1to5 Over 5

Assets, CPl indexed linked year years years Total
o =T F o R oW 1) o 41T 3N 13,894 78,509 192,001 284,404
FINANCIAl INSEIUMEBNTS ..viiiiiiiciie ettt e e st e e e sab e e e aaeeenaee e naeeenns 2,305 - - 2,305
Off-balance sheet position .... 2,478 2,394 - 4,872
Assets, CPlindexed linKed .......ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiirereneneeeseseeeeeesesesesenens . 18,677 80,903 192,001 291,581
Liabilities, CPI indexed linked

D T<T o To 1 £ URSN 67,044 21,585 2,707 91,336
BOITOWINES ...vveiiiieeeiieeeiiee et et e st ste e st e e st e e sbae e s baeeesteesnnteeestaesnasaeenasaeesnneeesrens 2,830 12,625 116,914 132,369

Liabilities, CPI indexed linked 69,874 34,210 119,621 223,705

Net on-balance Sheet POSILION .....c.ueeiciieiiieece e e e (53,675) 44,299 72,380 63,004
Net off-balance sheet POSItION .......cccceiiiieiiecieceee e e 2,478 2,394 - 4,872
CPIBalance 31.12.2013 .......cccoeiererrrererererererenssesessssssesssenenanens (51,197) 46,693 72,380 67,876
CPIBAlaNCe 31.12.2002 ....ireeiieeeeeirteiee ettt e e e eerttt e e e e eetar e e e e eeeaaaeeeeeseenbareeeeeeennnraeeeeas (40,402) 40,989 44,553 45,140

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates. The Group is primarily exposed to currency risk
through a currency mismatch between assets and liabilities. The liabilities of the Group are predominantly ISK denominated deposits
whereas a substantial part of the Group's assets consist of foreign currency denominated loans to customers. Net exposures per
currency are monitored centrally in the Bank.

Breakdown of assets and liabilities by currency at the end of the year

2013

Assets ISK EUR usb CHF GBP JPY Other Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank 30,745 4,971 731 693 376 254 229 37,999
Loans to credit institutions ................ 25,156 17,490 10,064 5,856 15,071 4,475 24,195 102,307
Loans to customers ........ccccceeveeneenns 514,206 50,739 27,080 12,296 7,241 6,382 17,830 635,774
Financial instruments .. . 65,025 13,754 4,860 7 73 2 2,820 86,541
Investment property .......cccccoveuvreeeenn. 28,523 - - - - - - 28,523
Investments in associates .................. 12,253 - - - 5,676 - - 17,929
Intangible assets .......cccocveevveereerenenen. 5,383 - - - - - - 5,383
Tax assets .......... 818 - - - - - - 818
Other assets 22,903 486 104 - 46 - 37 23,576
Assets 31.12.2013 .......cccoeviiiiiiininnns 705,012 87,440 42,839 18,852 28,483 11,113 45,111 938,850
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41. Market risk, continued

Liabilities ISK EUR usb CHF GBP JPY Other Total
Due to credit inst. and Central Bank .. 23,189 1,832 622 839 4 1,514 - 28,000
DEPOSIES vevvveeeeerereereereesieesresveeeeenes 390,397 27,457 13,751 222 10,940 926 28,173 471,866
Financial liabilities at fair value ......... 8,921 32 2 - - - 5 8,960
Tax liabilities .....cccevveeveeeceereeeereens 4,924 - - - - - - 4,924
Other liabilities ........ccceevueevieecireeniens 38,508 1,120 2,114 75 59 410 1,381 43,667
BOITOWINGS ..eeveeeeveeieeieesiee e eee e 140,012 2,202 18,669 20,043 6,728 7,557 9,357 204,568
Subordinated liabilities ............c........ - 25,818 2,303 - 3,797 - - 31,918
EQUILY cveeeeeeereeeeee e 144,947 - - - - - - 144,947
Liabilities 31.12.2013 ...........ccccceeeeeeee 750,898 58,461 37,461 21,179 21,528 10,407 38,916 938,850
Net on-balance sheet position .......... (45,886) 28,979 5,378 (2,327) 6,955 706 6,195

Net off-balance sheet position 14,256  (17,076) 924 3,569 1,069 792 (3,534)

Net position 31.12.2013 .................. (31,630) 11,903 6,302 1,242 8,024 1,498 2,661

2012

Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank 24,874 3,353 729 155 403 4 228 29,746
Loans to credit institutions ................ 26,176 21,098 17,521 2,538 15,462 1,794 16,422 101,011
Loans to customers .......ccceeeeeeeeennnnne. 427,037 50,966 20,396 21,121 6,670 14,835 25,585 566,610
Financial instruments .........ccccevveeeunens 132,298 3,278 1,675 7 244 4 294 137,800
Investment property .......ccccoovnnneenn. 28,919 - - - - - - 28,919
Investments in associates .................. 7,050 - - - - - - 7,050
Intangible assets ......cccocveeeviveesciieennnns 4,941 - - - - - - 4,941
TaAX @SSELS wevvvveeerrriiirieee e e e e 463 - - - - - - 463
Other assets ......cccceeveeeviieeesciveeeiiieens 22,254 1,592 245 - 4 - 40 24,135
Assets 31.12.2012 ........ccccvvvneeeeennns 674,012 80,287 40,566 23,821 22,783 16,637 42,569 900,675
Liabilities

Due to credit inst. and Central Bank .. 31,060 1,486 201 - 24 218 1 32,990
DEPOSILS veeuveereeeereereereeeteeere e 362,384 28,663 13,893 1,831 10,185 1,374 30,353 448,683
Financial liabilities at fair value ......... 12,665 791 - - - - 9 13,465
Tax liabilities ......coceevvveeeicieeeeeeeee 3,237 - - - - - - 3,237
Other liabilities .......cccccevvveevierieeseenns 34,084 2,786 1,866 298 808 1,430 845 42,117
BOITOWINGS ..oovveeeveeieecreecteecte e 132,214 2,815 20,785 21,698 7,346 10,227 - 195,085
Subordinated liabilities ..........cccccuvene. - 27,511 2,563 - 4,146 - - 34,220
EQUILY eveeeeieeeeeeeeeeee e 130,878 - - - - - - 130,878
Liabilities 31.12.2012 ........cccoccuveeenane 706,522 64,052 39,308 23,827 22,509 13,249 31,208 900,675
Net on-balance sheet position .......... (32,510) 16,235 1,258 (6) 274 3,388 11,361

Net off-balance sheet position .......... 14,347 (8,624) 3,667 (1,239) 3,321 (3,672) (7,800)

Net position 31.12.2012 .................. (18,163) 7,611 4,925 (1,245) 3,595 (284) 3,561
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41. Market risk, continued

Sensitivity analysis on currency risk

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Group had significant exposure at 31 December 2013. The analysis calculates the
effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the ISK, with all other variables held constant, on the income
statement (due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities). A negative amount in the table
reflects a potential net reduction in income statement or equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase. An
equivalent decrease in each of the below currencies against the ISK would have resulted in an equivalent but opposite impact (+10%

denotes a depreciation of the ISK).

2013 2012
Currency -10% +10% -10% +10%
EUR ettt h et h e bbb bt h et b b et ea e e st e rentean (1,290) 1,190 (761) 761
(630) 630 (493) 493
(124) 124 125 (125)
(802) 802 (360) 360
(150) 150 28 (28)
(266) 266 (356) 356
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Equity risk

Equity risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as the result of changes in the level of equity indices and individual stocks.
The non-trading equity price risk exposure is mainly due to restructuring of the Group's assets i.e. restructuring of troubled companies
which the Group has taken over. For information on assets seized and held for sale and equity exposures, see notes 27 and 21
respectively.

Sensitivity analysis on equity risk
The analysis below calculates the effect of a reasonable possible movement in equity prices on the income statement. A negative
amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in income statement or equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential

increase.

2013 2012
Equity -10% +10% -10% +10%
Trading DOOK = LISTE ....eecveeieieeeiieieccie et ste et et te et e e s ee e e sveesaeesraessaeesaeenseenes (120) 120 (37) 37
Banking DOOK = LISTEM ....ccueeiuiiiiiieieeieeitee ettt sttt st st (307) 307 (245) 245
Banking bOOK - UNIISTEA .......ccviicieeiieiie ettt sea e s teete e e e snneenes (1,094) 1,094 (972) 972

Derivatives

Customers can enter into derivatives contracts with the Bank. The types of derivatives currently offered by the Group are FX swaps and
forwards, interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps, as well as options and forwards on equities, Treasury notes and bonds with
Government guarantee. Limits on exposures and collateral are determined in accordance with the Group's risk appetite. The Group also
uses derivatives to reduce market risk on its balance sheet. The Group's exposure to derivative instruments has increased in the year
2013 but is not considered a material risk.

Prepayment risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Group will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request
repayment earlier or later than expected, such as fixed rate mortgages when interest rates fall. The Group is not materially exposed to
prepayment risk at the end of the year 2013.
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42. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group, though solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, or can secure them only at excessive cost. Liquidity risk arises from the inability to manage unplanned
decreases or changes in funding sources.

The Group’s primary source of funding is deposits from individuals, businesses and financial institutions. The Group’s liquidity risk
stems from the fact that the maturity of loans exceeds the maturity of deposits, approximately half of which is on demand.

Liquidity risk is one of the Group’s most important risk factors and great deal of emphasis is placed on managing it. The Asset and
Liability Committee is responsible for managing liquidity risk within the risk appetite the Board sets. The Bank’s Treasury manage
liquidity positions on a day-to day basis. Risk management measures, monitors and reports the Bank’s liquidity risk.

The Icelandic economy has been subject to capital controls since late 2008. The Group's strategy is to always maintain sufficient
liquidity by maintaining a high ratio of liquid assets and available funding to near term liabilities and possible payment outflows. The
lifting of the capital controls remain uncertain.

Liquidity coverage ratio

On 1 December 2013 new liquidity rules issued by the Central Bank of Iceland took effect, overriding rules on liquidity and cash ratios
that have previously been reported by the Group. The new rules are based on liquidity standards introduced in the Basel Il Accord
which are to be implemented in 2015 on a global level. The standard defines the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), which is the balance
between highly liquid assets and the expected net cash outflow of the Group in the next 30 days under stressed conditions.

The criteria for liquid assets used to meet unexpected outflow is stricter for the new liquidity measure. The assets must be non-
pledged, liquid and easily priced on the market, repoable at the Central Bank and not issued by the Group or related entities.

The Central Bank has set a guideline for minimum Liquidity Coverage Ratio. As at 1 January 2014, the LCR requirement is 100% in
foreign currency and 70% in total (ISK and foreign currency). The latter benchmark increases by 10% every year until a 100%
requirement is implemented in 2017.

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio as at year end 2013 is shown below. No comparison is made to 2012 figures as the new LCR rules took
effect shortly prior to year end 2013.

Liquidity coverage ratio 2013
OO 274%
L LR 123%

LCR deposit categorization

As per the LCR methodology, the Group's deposit base is split into different categories depending on customer type. A second
categorization is used where term deposits refer to deposits with a residual maturity greater than 30 days. Deposits that can be
withdrawn within 30 days are marked stable if the customer has a business relationship with the Group and the amount is covered by
the Deposit Insurance Scheme. Other deposit funds are considered less stable. A weight is attributed to each category, representing the
expected outflow under stressed conditions, i.e. the level of stickiness.
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42. Liquidity risk, continued

The table below shows the breakdown of the Group's deposit base according to the LCR categorization, with the associated expected
stressed outflow weights. Some similar categories are grouped together.

LCR categorization - amounts and LCR outflow weights Deposits maturing within 30 days Term
Less Stable Weight (%)  Stable Weight (%) deposits*
201 1| RSOOSR 75,385 10% 33,971 5% 30,224
SIMIE ettt e e e e e e e et a e e e e e e arraaaaeean 32,496 10% 3,723 5% 6,675
Operational relationShip ......cccceeriereeeecee e 847 25% - 5% 530
Corporations ....ccoeccvveeeeeerivvneennn. 49,841 40% 742 20% 12,977
Sovereigns, central-banks and PSE ..........cccceevieveeniesieeseeseesee e 19,104 40% - - 7,206
Financial entities being wound Up .......c.eoieeiiiniiniieeeeee e 17,616 100% - - 59,675
Deposit PENSION FUNTS ....ccvieiieciecieceeee e 4,346 100% - - 20,639
Pension funds ........cccecueenee 46,420 100% - - 20,299

Domestic financial @NTILIES ....c.eeevevveieciieiccie et 26,652 100% - - 13,636
Foreign financial entities ........ccoccoceveiiiinieiiicce 2,135 100% - - 495
Other fOreign Parties ......ccveveeecieeceereesee e eae e seeens 3,830 100% 626 25% 250

. 278,672 39,062 172,606
*No outflow assumed from term deposits.

43. Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damage to the Bank's reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes or systems, from human error or external events that affect the Group's image and operational earnings.

Each business unit within the Group is primarily responsible for taking and managing their own operational risk. Operational risk
function is responsible for developing and maintaining tools for identifying, measuring, monitoring and reporting the Group’s
operational risk.

The Group uses the Basel Il basic indicator approach to the calculation of capital requirements for operational risk.
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44. Capital management

The capital base at 31 December 2013 amounts to I1SK 170,439 million. The capital adequacy ratio, calculated in accordance with Article
84 of the Act on Financial Undertakings was 23.6%, exceeding the minimum legal requirement of 8%.

The Group uses the standardised approach to calculate the capital requirements for credit risk and market risk and basic indicator
approach for operational risk.

The Bank carries out an on-going process, the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), with the aim to ensure that the
Bank has in place sufficient risk management processes and systems to identify, manage and measure the Bank’s total risk exposure.
The ICAAP is aimed at identifying and measuring the Group’s risk across all risk types and ensure that the Group has sufficient capital in
accordance to its risk profile. FME supervises the Group, receives the Group's internal estimation on the capital adequacy and sets
capital requirements for the Group as a whole.

The Group is subject to capital requirements which are specified by the FME following the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process
(SREP). The Group’s capital base exceeds the FME‘s SREP requirements (2012: the same).

Group's RWA calculations

Capital Base 2013 2012
Share capital and SNAre PremMIUM .......ooiiiiiiie et et sttt et sat e st e e b e e bt e saeesateebeesbeesstesanenane 75,861 75,861
Other reserves 1,637 1,639
RETAINEA BAIMINES ..ottt et ettt st e bt e bt e sat e s ab e e be e bee s bt e sabeesbe et e ebbesabeeabeenseensaesateeaseanseas 62,591 49,572
[\ Lo g B oo TaTd o] | 1Y g L=y o Xy £ 4,858 3,806
Lo = I8 0 10 S 144,947 130,878
L0 T d] o T YY1 YOS URUSRROt (5,383) (4,941)
TAX @SSOES uvtenuteeuieitiet e et e et et e e te e et e bt e s bt e sub e e a b e e bt e sh e e e h b e e a b e e bt e Rt e eae e et e e At e eheeeate e bt e eheesateeabe e heeehtesabeeabeesbeeshteenreenee (818) (463)
(04 =T o =Y (U o VA [T L8 ot e o LTSRSt (119) -
TOtal TIEr 1 CAPItal ..ceueiiiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiiiiineneteiescsssnsnesesssssssensesssssssssnsssnssessssssnssanssessssssnnsasssssssssssnsssssssssssnnnansssss 138,627 125,474
VLYo Yo [T g =N €=Te M =] o1 L =SSP OPPSURRRRRRTRNt 31,918 34,220
Other statutory deductions .. (106) -
Total Capital base ................ 170,439 159,694
Risk weighted assets

(O =T L1 A RSOSSN 608,029 557,964
YT L A T S o PSS 31,703 20,063
IMIAFKET FISK OTNEI ettt e e et e e et e e e eab e e e eab e e s eateeeeasaeesasseessseeeasseeeeabeeeeabeeesnbeeennseeas 4,993 7,407
(O] o 1T 1A Lo Y o F= LI 4 £ SRRt 76,097 72,329
Total risk WeIShted @SSEtS .....ciiiiiiiiiriiiiiiiiiiiiintiiieiiiiisnneteisisisssnsesssssssssssnssssesssssssnsasssssssssssssassssssssnns 720,822 657,763
LI LT - o TSPV PRPRRRPRPRN 19.2% 19.1%
(O o1 &= I To (Lo [V o)V -1 o PSP 23.6% 24.3%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation
of the Group's annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

45. Going concern assumption

The Group's management has made an assessment of the ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Group has the
resources to continue. In making this assessment, management has taken into consideration the risk exposures facing the Group which
are further described in the Risk Management Disclosures. The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

46. Principles underlying the consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Financial Statements of subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The Financial Statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity, using consistent accounting policies.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, i.e. when control is transferred to the
Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
— the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
— the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; less
— if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
— the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Transaction costs incurred are expensed and included in administration expense.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and equity not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group; such
interests are presented separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and are included in equity in the Statement of Financial
Position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the Group.

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree either:
— at fair value; or

— at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value.
Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Loss of control

On the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other
components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intragroup balances, income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the Financial Statements.

If an investment in subsidiary is classified as held for sale the investment is accounted for, as non-current asset and disposal groups
held for sale from the date of classification.

Funds management

The Group manages and administers assets held in unit trusts and investment vehicles on behalf of investors. The Financial Statements
of these entities are not included in these Financial Statements except when the Group controls the entity.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2013 62 Amounts are in ISK millions




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence, i.e. the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the associates but not control or joint control over those policies. Significant influence generally exists when the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power, including potential voting rights. Investments in associates are initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of investments in associates includes intangible assets and accumulated impairment loss.

The Financial Statements include the Group's share of the total recognised income and expenses of associates from the date that
significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds its carrying
value of associate, the Group's carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share
of losses not recognised.

If an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale the equity method is no longer applied and the investment is accounted for,
as a non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale. In instances where control of a subsidiary is lost and the Group retains an
associate investment, a portion of the recognised gain or loss on sale is attributable to the investment retained in the former subsidiary
at its fair value at the date when control is lost. This gain or loss is recognised as either Other operating income (expense) or Net gain
(loss) from discontinued operations in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Impairment on investments in associates

After applying the equity method to account for investments in associates, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to its investments in associates. The Group first determines whether there is any objective evidence
that an investment in an associate is impaired. If such evidence exists, the Group then tests the entire carrying amount of the
investment for impairment, by comparing its recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell,
with its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of an investment in an associate is assessed for each associate, unless the associate
does not generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Group. The excess of
the carrying amount over the recoverable amount is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an impairment loss.
Impairment losses are subsequently reversed through the Statement of Comprehensive Income if the reasons for the impairment loss
no longer apply.

48. Foreign currency

Items included in the Financial Statements of each of the Group's subsidiaries are measured using the functional currency of the
respective entity.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at the dates
of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported at
historic cost.

49. Interest

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The
effective interest rate is established on initial recognition of the financial asset and financial liability and is not revised subsequently.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a
financial asset or financial liability.
Interest income and expense presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income include:

— Interest on financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost on an effective interest rate basis;

— Interest on financial assets and liabilities held for trading; and

— Interest on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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50. Fee and commission

The Group provides various services to its clients and earns income therefrom, such as income from Corporate banking, Retail banking,
Capital Markets, Corporate Finance, Asset Management and Private banking. Fees earned from services that are provided over a
certain period of time are recognised as the services are provided. Fees earned from transaction type services are recognised when the
service has been completed. Fees that are performance linked are recognised when the performance criteria are fulfilled.

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or liability are included in
the measurement of the effective interest rate.

51. Net financial income

Net financial income comprises Dividend income, Net gain on financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held for trading, Net
gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value, Net foreign exchange gain.

i) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity
securities.

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value comprises all realised and unrealised fair value changes in trading portfolio
and assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, except for interest (which is included in Interest income and
Interest expense) and foreign exchange gain and losses (which are included in Net foreign exchange gains as described below).

ii) Net foreign exchange gain comprise all foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement of foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities and on translating foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at rates different from those at which they were
translated on initial recognition during the year or in previous Financial Statements.

Net foreign exchange gain also include foreign exchange differences arising on translating non-monetary assets and liabilities which
are measured at fair value in foreign currencies and whose other gain and loss are also recognised in profit or loss.

52. Income tax expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax for the year has been calculated and recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the realization
of foreign exchange gain or loss, for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they
relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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53. Financial assets and financial liabilities

Recognition

The Group initially recognises loans, deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date at which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. All other financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provision of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in one of the following categories:

— loans;

— at fair value through profit or loss and within the category as:
— held for trading; or
— designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as measured at amortised cost or
fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation of the Group specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, the
Group has a legal right to offset the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting standards, or for gains or losses arising from
a group of similar transactions such as in the Group's trading activity.

Disclosures on offsetting are provided in Note 23.

Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition,
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

All consumer price indexed assets and liabilities are revalued based on the index rate at the end of the year.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm's length transaction on the measurement date.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis.

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group establishes fair value using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques
include using recent arm's length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value
of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses, and option pricing models. The Group uses widely
recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of common and more simpler financial instruments like options and interest
rate and currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into models are market observable.
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53. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

The value produced by a model or other valuation technique is adjusted to allow for a number of factors as appropriate, because
valuation techniques cannot appropriately reflect all factors market participants take into account when entering into a transaction.
Valuation adjustments are recorded to allow for model risks, bid-ask spreads, liquidity risks, as well as other factors. Management
believes that these valuation adjustments are necessary and appropriate to fairly state financial instruments carried at fair value in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Identification and measurement of impairment

At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the
initial recognition of the assets, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be estimated
reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, default or
delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise consider,
indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable
data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged
decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans at both a borrower-specific and a collective level. Borrowers for specific
assessment are sampled based on a combination of the borrowers’ exposure, days in default and an internal classification where
customers are classified according to financial position, defaults and credit rating. In determining specific provisions for impairment on
individually assessed borrowers, the following factors are considered:

— The Group’s aggregate exposure to the customer;

— The amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;

— The likely distribution available on liquidation or bankruptcy;

— The complexity of determining the aggregate amount and ranking of all creditor claims and the extent to which legal and insurance
uncertainties are evident;

— The realisable value of collateral (or other credit mitigates) and likelihood of successful repossession; and

— The likely deduction of any costs involved in recovery of amounts outstanding.

The amount of the loss impaired is the difference between the assets’ carrying value and the present value of estimated future cash
flow.

Collective provisions are taken for all loans other than those that have been specifically impaired. Also exempt from collective
provisions are loans that are more than 90 days in default, but have been determined not to require specific impairment. All loans
under ISK 1 million get general provisions only.

In assessing collective impairment, two deciding, quantitative components need to be addressed in order to perform the calculation i.e.
probability of default (PD) and loss given default (LGD). The Bank uses internally developed probability-of-default models, which are
regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure the predictive power of the models. For loss given default the Group uses
standard values.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans. When an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

In some cases, financial assets are acquired at a deep discount that reflects incurred credit losses. The Group includes such incurred
credit losses in the estimated cash flows when computing the effective interest rate. If the Group revises its estimate of payments or
receipts, the Group adjusts the carrying amount of the financial asset to reflect actual and revised estimated cash flows. The Group
recalculates the carrying amount by computing the present value of estimated future cash flows at the financial instrument’s original
effective interest rate. The adjustment is recognised as increase in value of loans in profit or loss when recalculation results in an
increase in carrying amount and impairment when decrease in carrying amount.
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53. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Loans are written off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery of these amounts and, for collateralised
loans, when the proceeds from the realisation of collateral have been received.

Designation at fair value through profit or loss
The Group has designated financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in either of the following circumstances:

— the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise; or

— the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
under the contract.

54. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows consist of cash, demand deposits with the Central Bank and demand deposits
with other credit institutions. Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months' maturity from the date of
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the Statement of Financial position.

55. Loans

Loans are financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the Group does
not intend to sell immediately or in the near term. Loans include loans provided by the Group to credit institutions and to its
customers, participation in loans from other lenders and purchased loans.

Loans are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

When the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the asset to the lessee, the arrangement is classified as a finance lease and a receivable equal to the net investment in the lease is
recognised and presented within loans.

When the Group purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset (or a substantially similar
asset) at a fixed price on a future date reverse repo or stock borrowing, the arrangement is accounted for as a loan, and the underlying
asset is not recognised in the Group's Financial Statements.

56. Financial instruments

Trading assets and liabilities
Trading assets and liabilities are financial instruments acquired principally for the purpose of generating profits from short term price

fluctuations or from a dealer’s margin, and derivative financial instruments.

Securities used for hedging are trading securities acquired exclusively in order to hedge against market risk of asset swap derivative
contracts.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Assets classified designated at fair value through profit or loss consist of equity and debt instruments which are acquired by the Group

with a view to profiting from their total return and which are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis.

Financial instruments and trading liabilities are initially and subsequently measured at fair value in the Statement of Financial position,
with transaction costs recognised in profit or loss. All changes in fair value are recognised as part of net financial income in profit or
loss.

Interest and dividend income that arises from these assets are included in Interest income and Net financial income, respectively.
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57. Derivatives

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract, the value of which changes in response to a change in an underlying variable,
such as share, commodity or bond prices, an index value or an exchange or interest rate, which requires no initial net investment or
initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar
response to changes in market factors and which is settled at a future date.

Derivatives are recognised at fair value. Fair value changes are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Changes in fair
values of derivatives are split into interest income, foreign exchange differences and net financial gain or loss. Interest income is
recognised on an accrual basis. Derivatives with positive fair values are recognised as Financial instruments and derivatives with
negative fair values are recognised as Financial liabilities at fair value.

58. Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill that arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented with intangible assets. Subsequent to initial recognition goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Software

Software acquired by the Group is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortisation of software is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods is five years.

59. Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.

Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

60. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than non-current assets held for resale, investment property and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine, whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of intangible assets is assessed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss in respect of other assets, where impairment losses have been recognised in prior periods, are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.
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61. Deposits

Deposits are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

62. Borrowings

Some of the borrowings of the Group are classified as other financial liabilities and are initially recognised at fair value less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption amount being recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings on an effective
interest basis. Accrued interest is included in the carrying amount of the borrowings.

63. Subordinated liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are financial liabilities in the form of subordinated capital which, in case of the Group's voluntary or compulsory
winding-up, will not be repaid until after the claims of ordinary creditors have been met. In the calculation of the capital ratio, they are
included within Tier Il, as shown in Note 44. The subordinated liabilities have no maturity date and the Group may only retire them with
the permission of the Icelandic Financial Supervisory Authority.

Subordinated liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
subordinated liabilities are stated at principal amount due plus accrued interest, which is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income based on the contractual terms of the borrowing.

64. Other assets and other liabilities

Property and equipment
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. When parts of an item of
property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits of the expenditure will flow to the
Group. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The depreciable amount of property and equipment is determined after deducting its residual value. Depreciation is charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property and
equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings ..... . 33-50 years

EQUIPIMENT ettt ettt sttt sttt ettt sttt et et st s4e st sae e ses es e s ses bestebtet 4 es et eaeaae e st eae a4 eb ebe see e eaesseases b estebbesdeb et et et eneeaeebe et saestenreeen 3-7 years
The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed annually.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

The Group classifies a non-current asset or disposal group as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset or disposal group and the sale
must be highly probable.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the qualifying assets and all assets and liabilities in a disposal
group is brought up-to-date in accordance with applicable IFRS. Then, on initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets and
disposal groups are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial
classification as held for sale are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, even when there is a revaluation. The same
applies to gains and losses on subsequent remeasurement. Revaluation through the reversal of impairment in subsequent periods is
limited so that the carrying amount of the held for sale, non-current assets or disposal group does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Other assets and other liabilities

Other assets and other liabilities are stated at cost less impairment.
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65. Equity

Dividends

Dividends on shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by Arion Bank’s shareholders.

Statutory reserve

According to the Icelandic companies Act No. 2/1995 at least 10% of the profit of the Group which is not devoted to meeting losses
from previous years and is not contributed to other legal reserves must be contributed to the statutory reserve until it amounts to 10%
of the share capital. When that limit has been reached the contribution must be at least 5% of the profit until the statutory reserve
amounts to 25% of the share capital of the Bank.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the Financial
Statements of foreign operations.

66. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net earnings attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank hf. by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

67. Financial guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Group gives financial guarantees, consisting of letters of credit, guarantees and acceptances.
Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the Financial Statements at fair value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, and the best estimate of expenditure
required to settle any financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to financial
guarantees is recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The premium received is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in Net fees and commission income on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee.

68. Fiduciary activities
The Group provides asset custody, asset management, investment management and advisory services to its clients. These services

require the Group to make decisions on the treatment, acquisition or disposal of financial instruments. Assets in the Group's custody
are not reported in its Statement of Financial Position.

69. Employee benefits
All entities with employees within the Group have defined contribution plans. The entities pay fixed contribution to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory and contractual basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once these

contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when they
become due. The Group does not operate any pension fund which confers pension rights.
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70. New standards and amendments to standards

New standards and amendments to standards effective in 2013

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the following new and amended
IFRS effective as of 1 January 2013:

IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Amendments to IFRS 7. These amendments require an entity
to disclose information about rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures provide users
with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The disclosures are
required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The
disclosures also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with IAS 32. These amendments do not impact the Group’s financial
position or performance.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13
does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS
when fair value is required or permitted. There are also additional disclosure requirements. Adoption of the standard does not have a
material impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013,
and have not been applied in preparing these Financial Statements. Relevant to the Group's reporting are:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement. In November 2009, the IASB issued IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which
includes new classification and measurement criteria for financial assets. The publication of IFRS 9 represents the completion of the
first part of a multi-stage project to replace IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement. Under the revised guidance, a
financial asset is to be accounted for at amortized cost only if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Non-traded equity instruments may be accounted for at
fair value, with unrealised and realised fair value gains recognised through other comprehensive income, but the subsequent release of
amounts booked directly to other comprehensive income to profit or loss is no longer permitted. All other financial assets are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its Financial
Statements. An effective date for the application of IFRS 9 has not yet been decided.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in SIC-12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled, and
therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27. This standard has been
endorsed by the EU and became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to
consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28. These disclosures
relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are
also required. The standard will not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group. This standard has been
endorsed by the EU and became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilites — Amendments to IAS 32. These amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off”. It will be necessary to assess the impact to the Group by reviewing settlement
procedures and legal documentation to ensure that offsetting is still possible in cases where it has been achieved in the past. In certain
cases, offsetting may no longer be achieved. In other cases, contracts may have to be renegotiated. The requirement that the right of
set-off be available for all counterparties to the netting agreement may prove to be a challenge for contracts where only one party has
the right to offset in the event of default. Adoption of the standard is not expected to have a material impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. These amendments became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IFRIC 21 defines a levy as an outflow from an entity imposed by a government in accordance with legislation. It confirms that an entity
recognises a liability for a levy when the triggering event specified in the legislation occurs. IFRIC 21 is not expected to have a material
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group. IFRIC 21 became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.
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